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Central to our Annual Report this year
is the theme of ‘Learning the Lessons’.

Ever since the Police Reform Act
2002 established the IPCC, the new
complaints system has aimed to
feed back into operational policing
the lessons that can be learned from
complaints and serious incidents.

Much of the day-to-day work of the
IPCC is of course concerned with
ensuring that complaints and serious
incidents are properly dealt with, and
that the system for holding police
officers to account for their conduct
is effective and proportionate.

Public interest in the IPCCis also
focused on this element of its work.
However, in the long run, the real
value of the IPCC lies in contributing
to improving performance and in
reducing the likelihood of the same
sorts of incidents happening again.
We have now developed a robust
formal process with all of the relevant
policing agencies to ensure that
lessons are learned and disseminated.

This report highlights our work in a
number of the areas of greatest public
concern, and there are three key issues
in particular that | want to bring to
the attention of the Home Secretary,
his new ministerial team and the
police service.
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Firstly, the police response to domestic
violence. Tania Moore, Hayley Richards
and Colette Lynch all died at the
hands of their violent partners or
ex-partners. These were terrible
incidents, and the IPCC was sharply
critical of the police service’s failure
to protect these women. In all of
these incidents there was a failure to
provide an inclusive and co-ordinated
response, incorporating coherent
control of the investigation on one
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hand and effective communication
with the victim on the other. This was
the theme of the first bulletin of the
Learning the Lessons Committee, and
itis anissue that needs to be treated
with the greatest seriousness.

Secondly, the IPCC research report
into police road traffic incidents will
be published shortly after this report.
Road traffic incidents are the single
greatest cause of death following
police contact: approximately 40
people die each year in road traffic
incidents involving the police. The
research found that most of these
incidents (around 30 a year) were

the result of a police pursuit. These
pursuits tended to be over quickly and
generally involved the police pursuing
young male drivers who either died
themselves or crashed and killed
pedestrians or other road users.

There is a public perception that
many of these deaths result from
emergency response incidents and
from the police driving at speed
without good cause.This is not the
case: the report illustrates the acute
dilemma that is faced by the police
service over how to respond to road
users who are a danger to others
without increasing that danger.

The Association of Chief Police Officers’
(ACPO's) Guidelines for the Management
of Police Pursuits document provides

a good benchmark for forces to work
to—but the IPCC report highlights the
gap between the guidelines and the
extent to which they have actually been
incorporated into policy and practice on
the ground.There is a need for police
pursuits to be better managed, and for

the best possible training and support
to be provided for the officers and police
staff who need to make the critical,
difficult and split-second decisions that
are involved.

Thirdly, a consistent theme of the
IPCC's work has always been the
critical interface between health and
police services — particularly when
dealing with people with mental
health problems.The most disturbing
element of this is when individuals
with acute mental health problems
are detained in police custody as

a ‘place of safety’ under Section

136 of the Mental Health Act. They
are detained not because they are
criminals but because they are ill.
Research conducted by the IPCC in
2005/06 revealed that this happened
to at least 11,500 people — but with
wide variations across forces.

Police custody is not a ‘place of safety’
—and much more needs to be done to
ensure that this option is only used as
a last resort. Some police forces have
already succeeded in bringing the use
of Section 136 to very low levels: this
approach now needs to be extended
across the country.

The IPCC’s remit now extends
beyond the police service. This has
been the first year that the IPCC has
had operational responsibility for
complaints about the conduct of the
Serious Organised Crime Agency and
Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs
staff, who use ‘police-like’ powers.

In 2006/07 we also began to prepare
for the extension of our remit to the
new Border and Immigration Agency,
which will be exercising similar
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powers. This modest extension of our
role will bring real benefits in terms
of learning across all of the services
involved.

The theme of ‘Learning the Lessons’
is also one that we have tried to
apply to the IPCC’s own work as we
grow in experience. Now, five years
on from the Police Reform Act 2002,
we have launched a ‘stock take’ of the
complaints system. More needs to be
done to make it more transparent,
more proportionate and more focused
on putting things right — rather than
just allocating blame. Throughout
2007/08 we will be working with the
IPCC Advisory Board to identify and
drive further improvements in the
system.

I would like to thank the members of
the IPCC Advisory Board for all of their
support over the year. The members
represent many of the individuals
and organisations on whom the
effectiveness of the complaints
system depends.

In particular, | want to say a personal
thank you to David Lindley, Deputy
Chief Constable of Leicestershire
Constabulary, who has led for ACPO
on the complaints and discipline
system. He has now stood down from
this role, but has been a driving force
in progressing the changes across the
system.

This report describes a great deal of
hard work by IPCC Commissioners and
staff, and | want to thank them all. In
2006/07 we saw the departure of Sue
Atkins, the IPCC’s first Chief Executive,
who played a crucial role in the IPCC’s
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successful beginning. Barry Simpson,
the IPCC Director of Corporate
Services, took up the role of Acting
Chief Executive following Sue Atkins’
departure. Most of the work described
in this report took place under his
leadership,and | am grateful to him.
We now welcome Jane Furniss as
our new, permanent Chief Executive.
She has already begun to build very
successfully on the foundations laid
by her predecessors.

NP

Nick Hardwick, IPCC Chair
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The Independent Police Complaints
Commission (IPCC) was established by
the Police Reform Act 2002 and began
work on 1 April 2004.

The IPCC deals with complaints and
allegations of misconduct against the
police in England and Wales. It has a
general duty to increase confidence
in the police complaints system and
so contributes to increasing trust in
policing as a whole.

Northumbria

In April 2006, the IPCC's remit was
extended to include serious complaints
made against the staff of the Serious
Organised Crime Agency (SOCA) and Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC).

The IPCC is independent. It makes its
decisions independently of the police
and government, and by law none of
its 17 Commissioners can have worked
for the police service, HMRC or SOCA
in any capacity.

Durham Cleveland
Cumbria
North region Central region
Independent Police . Independent Police
g o North Yorkshire : o
Complaints Commission Complaints Commission
1st Floor, Oaklands House Independent House
Washway Road i vV\{(e;t. Humberside Whitwick Business Park
Sale M33 6FS G Stenson Road
Fax: 0161 969 5659 ManfhSsteT south Coalville LE67 4JP
Merseyside Jorkshire Fax: 01530510718
Cheshire DR Lincolnshire
Nottinghamshire
North Wales [~
Staffordshire ”L; b\/
Wales and South \ Norfolk
. Leicestershire

West region West Cambridgeshire

) Midland
Independent Police LS

Complaints Commission
Unit 2

Eastern Business Park
Wern Fawr Lane

St Mellons

Cardiff CF3 5EA

Fax: 029 2036 1967

West Mercia Warwickshire

Dyfed-Powys

South Gwent
Wales

Wiltshire

Avon & Somerset

Dorset

Devon & Cornwall

Bedfordshire

Thames Valley

Hampshire

Northamptonshire

Suffolk

London and

South East region
Independent Police

—2 Complaints Commission
90 High Holborn
London WC1V 6BH

Fax: 020 7242 4695

Hertfordshire  =%€X

etropolital
& City

Surrey Kent

Sussex
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The IPCC can choose to either
supervise or (in the most serious

cases) manage a police investigation
into a complaint, or investigate that
complaint independently using its
own investigators.The IPCC also deals
with appeals from complainants about
the recording of complaints, the local
resolution process and the outcome of
police investigations into complaints.

The IPCC has four regional offices
covering central and eastern England,
London and the South East, northern
England,and Wales and the South West.

Commissioners are supported by

a professional staff of caseworkers,
investigators and support staff, who
carry out the day-to-day work of

the IPCC under the direction of the Chief
Executive.

International network

The independent oversight of policing is a highly specialised activity, with many different
models and approaches used across the world. The IPCC is currently helping to set up an
international network to link up organisations overseeing police complaints in Africa, the
Americas, Asia Pacific and Europe. The steering group for this new network, convened by
the IPCC’s Deputy Chair John Wadham, had its first meeting in March 2007. Once fully
operational, the steering group will help to champion the effective oversight of policing
and will create opportunities for sharing learning and best practice.

|PCC visits

Working in partnership with the UK Foreign and Commonwealth Office, Crown Agents,
Public Administration International, the Danish Institute for Human Rights and other
agencies, the IPCC welcomed 101 international visitors to its offices during 2006/07. Many
of these were individuals who have been involved in police reform projects or in the
setting up or review of mechanisms for handling complaints against the police. Among
other places, visitors came from Albania, Angola, China, Ethiopia, Hungary, Kazakhstan,
Mexico, Pakistan, Romania, South Korea and Vietnam.

In addition, IPCC Commissioners have been invited to participate in discussions about
the setting up or review of oversight mechanisms, as guests of foreign governments and
agencies. Visits to both Thailand and Hungary have taken place, and in both cases the
Commissioners’ costs were met by the event organiser.
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9780102945560_Text / Sig: 5/ Plate B

The IPCC's work is an important part
of the police complaints system, and
the passion and professionalism of
our staff in dealing with complex and
sensitive cases —both in investigations
and casework —is striking and
refreshing. The IPCC

is impressive in terms of how it
balances the needs of complainants
and the needs of the police, often

in very difficult circumstances.

The organisation has made good
progress since its inception in 2004.

The Year ip’Focus: Summary
from the Chief Executive

Tony McNulty MP, the Home Office
Minister for Security, Counter Terrorism
and the Police, visited the IPCC at the
end of 2006/07 — around the time of
the end of my first 100 days as the new
Chief Executive. It was clear that he
shared our vision for the organisation
as we were about to embark on our
third operational year.

IPCC Commissioners and staff can be
rightly proud of their achievements in
the face of significant challenges over
the past year. The continued growth
in demand for the organisation’s
services — particularly in respect of
investigations and appeals — has been
handled in parallel with the continuing
work necessary to establish the basic
infrastructure and systems of the
organisation.The IPCC has a strong
vision, and its values are recognised
and understood by all Commissioners
and staff. Commissioners and

staff are genuinely committed to
demonstrating the organisation’s
values in their day-to-day work on

its behalf and in the interests of

the public. This is impressive and is
something that many organisations
would envy.

During 2006/07, there were no fewer
than three IPCC chief executives in post.
I would like to acknowledge the work
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of Sue Atkins, my predecessor,

in setting the IPCC on a sound footing.

| also recognise with great personal
appreciation the excellent role
undertaken by Barry Simpson as Acting
Chief Executive, following the departure
of Sue inJune 2006 and prior to my
arrival in December 2006. | inherited
an organisation with sound financial
and governance arrangements, strong
corporate and business planning,

a commitment to sound performance
and delivery,and the basis of an
effective performance management
system.

Despite significant efforts and
growing organisational maturity, we
have sometimes struggled with our
performance against aspirational
targets. We recognise that we need to
move forward from the set-up phase to
‘business as usual’ routinely delivering
to a high standard. We reviewed our
goals in preparation for the 2007/08
Corporate Plan and Business Plan,and

| am confident that we have now set
ourselves stretching but achievable
targets that will help us to improve our
performance incrementally over the
coming months.

Learning the lessons

Some complaints can be dealt with
quickly through the local resolution
process, without the need for a formal
investigation. Local resolution can lead
to a prompt apology or explanation,
but will not result in disciplinary
action. The police must obtain the
consent of the complainant before
using local resolution to resolve

a complaint.
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IPCC investigations not only uncover
misconduct - criminal or otherwise

— by individuals serving with the
police, but they also produce
invaluable lessons for policing policy
and practice. This means that the
police complaints and conduct system
can operate as a powerful tool for
improving policing.

Last year, the IPCC Chair announced
that we would be introducing a
national, strategic Learning the
Lessons Committee to capitalise

on this. An important focus of the
IPCC's work this year has been to use
this committee to develop a system
for the police to learn lessons from
investigations. This is discussed in
more detail in Chapter 4 of this report.

Public confidence

The IPCC has conducted a large-scale
survey of the general public, which
was published in February 2006.

It found that general willingness to
complain and awareness of the IPCC
were both high, but that some key
groups either had less confidence

in the complaints system or were
disinclined to use it. We therefore
commissioned Ipsos MORI to conduct
some follow-up work with these
groups as well as additional groups
that we were unable to include in
the original survey. The groups in
the study included young people,
those from black and minority
ethnic groups, people from lower
socio-economic groups, gay and
lesbian people, people for whom
English is not a first language, and
gypsies and travellers.

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2006/07
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The Year in Focus: Summary from the Chief Executive

independent
' police complaints
g commission

APPEAL
WITNESS .. 11SE

The study found a strong link between
people’s views of the police and their
views of the complaints system.Those
people who had more frequent and
adversarial contact with the police
tended to have the lowest levels

of trust in them, and as such they
were the least willing to complain
about police behaviour. Conversely,
those people who had the least
amount of contact with the police
had much higher expectations of
police behaviour, and were therefore

10

more willing to complain about a
range of potential misconduct. When
introduced to the idea of the IPCC,
respondents were broadly positive
about the organisation but felt that
more needs to be done to publicise
our work and successes.

The IPCC fed the study’s findings into
its communication strategies and
has been working with communities
across the country to address

the issues relating to awareness,
understanding and barriers outlined
in the report.

Local resolution
research

The IPCC co-funded the Institute for
Criminal Policy Research at King’s
College London to undertake research
into the local resolution process,

to examine the administrative
procedures for dealing with low-level
complaints against police officers,
and to assess officer and complainant
expectations and satisfaction with the
process. The findings of the research
were drawn from a national survey of
42 police forces in England and Wales,
and from in-depth work with a small
number of forces.

The research found that local
resolution has the potential to deal
effectively with low-level complaints,
but that there are instances where
the process is not being used as
fully as it could be. It was also found
that complainants need to be better
informed about the process —and
about the options open to them

—at the outset as well as during the
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course of the process. In addition, the
process of informing complainants
of the final outcome needs to be
handled more sensitively and more
flexibly. Officers — especially those
responsible for actually conducting
the local resolution process — need
better training on it and on the
intentions behind it. The Police
Federation of England and Wales has
an important role to play in changing
attitudes among the police towards
the complaints process.

The IPCC's London office is currently
conducting pilot work in the London
Borough of Brent to build on the
findings of the research, and the
communications team will be
carrying out further work over
2007/08 to improve understanding
of the local resolution process among
both complainants and police officers,
with the aim of increasing their
satisfaction levels.

Implementation of
a police complaints
system performance
framework

The IPCC is currently working to
establish a performance framework
for the police complaints system. This
is a large and complex project, with
implications for the IPCC and external
agencies —including the police service
and police authorities. It has an
ambitious timescale for delivery.

The aims of the performance
framework are:
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¢ toidentify consistent definitions
—across the IPCC, police forces
and other stakeholders — of what
good performance is in terms of
complaint handling

® todevelop systems for capturing
and reporting on how well the
police complaints system and its
constituent parts — police forces
and the IPCC —are doing

® to provide a system for working
with police forces to improve
performance.

Looking ahead, we need to be able to
satisfy ourselves, our stakeholders and
the public that the police complaints
system is meeting everyone’s high
expectations. We place great faith in
the police in this country and trust
them to protect us and our families.
We need to know that when a
complaint is made, there will be a fair
investigation of what (if anything)
went wrong, how it can be put right
and what lessons can be learned for
the future.| am committed to the
IPCC being the kind of complaints
body that fulfils these challenging
aspirations over the coming

12 months.

Mﬁ%/m

Jane Furniss, IPCC Chief Executive
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Learning the Lessons
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Introduction

A major aim of IPCC investigations is
to identify where improvements could
be made to police practice, or where
good practice in one force could
usefully be adopted by others.

Important lessons can be learnt even
where there has been no misconduct.
In the case of the discharge of a police
firearm during a raid in Forest Gate in
east London prompted by intelligence
about alleged terrorist activity on

the premises, the IPCC concluded
that there was no misconduct

by individual officers. Although
nothing was found, the IPCC found
that the police were right to mount
the operation in response to the
intelligence that had been received.
However, at the organisational level,
there was a need to plan better for
the possibility that the intelligence
could be wrong.

In several cases, the main issue

has been the lack of established
procedures. For example, a suspect
detained by the armed response

unit of one force managed to make
off with police firearms —in part
because the force had no standard
operating procedures in place for

the transportation of suspects by
armed response vehicles. In other
cases, the problem has been a serious
failure to follow existing procedures.
The case of Tania Moore, murdered
by her ex-partner after a history of
harassment including assault and
robbery, attracted national attention
due to a major failure on the part of
the police to apply basic investigation
techniques.

Learning the Lessons
Committee

One of the IPCC’s statutory functions
is to make recommendations

on police practices in light of its
experience. To facilitate learning from
the operation of the police complaints
and conduct system, the IPCC has
—with the Association of Chief Police
Officers (ACPO), the Association of
Police Authorities (APA), Her Majesty’s
Inspectorate of Constabulary

(HMIC), the Home Office and the

new National Policing Improvement
Agency (NPIA) —established a
multi-agency group known as the
Learning the Lessons Committee (‘the
Committee’). The Committee held its
first meeting in June 2006.
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Lessons coming out of the police
complaints and conduct system

are not confined to proposals for
changes in national policy. Even
where recommendations are directed
primarily at an individual police force,
there can nonetheless be learning
opportunities for other forces
managing similar situations. The same
rule applies to good practice: if an
example of good practice is identified
within one force, other forces should
usefully be able to adopt it as well.
One of the roles of the Committee is
to promote this type of learning.

The Committee has begun to receive
regular reports and information

on investigations. It will eventually
include appeals and has invited
HMRC and SOCA to provide reports.
The Committee then decides which of
these reports should be disseminated
further,and those selected are
included in a regular bulletin which

is circulated to the Home Office,
police forces and other bodies with
constabulary powers. Copies of the
bulletin are also sent to stakeholder
organisations and made available to
the public via the IPCC website. Some
of the Committee’s bulletins focus

on themes of particular significance,
such as domestic violence.

In order for this reporting process

to function effectively, a set of new
practices have been developed and are
currently the subject of a pilot in the
Wales and South West region.

The new practices that are being
tested include the following.

¢ Standard terms of reference
for all investigations are being
drawn up. These focus on the
need to consider learning
recommendations and good
practice.
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LEARNING
THE LESSONS

Domestic Violence
1. Headlines

A brief outline of recurring concerns in the cases in this bulletin, and related learning, follows - more detail can be
found on these concerns at pages 5 and 6 and on recommendations in the reports.

Learning £
_Concern Adopt positive action policy - consider arrest for breach of bail
Lack of a co-ordinated overview of all relevant incidents and conditions regardiess of the victim's wishes - and pursue
intelligence by staff with specialist training in domestic violence. search/arrest strategies on a consistent basis. -

. Learning .
Role of the domestic violence unit crucial to an inclusive and co- 3
ordinated response to domestic violence, but active supervision 1.5 Risk Assessment
needed generally to ensure follow through of incidents. Concern
No risk assessment informal or based on partial
evidence/no review on escalation of violence.
Learning

1.2 Record keeping

Concern Immediate response operational police cover not enough, staff
Failure to capture and accurately record the nature of an "eed specialist training in domestic violence to ensure effective
incident/series of incidents. s st

Learning
Full and accurate recording essential, otherwise intelligence

canot be assessed and cross-referenced. 1.6 Pr

Concern

flﬂmm”“mmmww&m

1.3 Awareness of triggers and risk indicators m"“’"“”""“’m “ e ¢

Concern contact victim, assess proactively
Make earl with the .

Lack of awareness of the circumstances likely to trigger domestic Mhyh.m‘.“m:.:".mu

Violence and faflure to recognise factors in perpetrator’s history  jiocate sufficient resources for these purposes.

that showed a need for intelligence in order to assess risk.

Learning :

Greater awareness of domestic violence triggers and risk 1,7 Interaction with other agencies

indicators critical if such tragedies are to be avoided in the Concern

future. Poor communication between the police and other agencies.

1.4 Arrest agency aware that someone has been professionally assessed as a
Cancern serious risk to bring this to the attention of police at a senior
Opportunities to arrest missed, sometimes repeatedly. level.

& B L = bwn

¢ Learning recommendations and
the findings that they relate to are
included in a separate section
of the investigation report.

® In order for any potential practical
difficulties with implementation to
be considered by the IPCC, the local
force is given the opportunity to
respond to the recommendations
in the draft learning report.

¢ Commissioners specialising
in particular areas review all
recommendations that would
involve a change to national policy,
in order to facilitate the detailed
development of appropriate
policies.

® Tentative recommendations are
classified as ‘suggestions’, in order
to distinguish them from the more
definitive recommendations.

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2006/07

Learning
Need for force to share intelligence with other forces, also for *
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Learning the Lessons

A woman was stabbed to death by her ex-partner after
making a series of complaints to the police about domestic
violence and harassment by him.Two weeks before her death,
she had reported that the brake pipes on her car had been
cut, but the police did not take a statement until three days
later. A handover statement was then left in the in-tray of a
probationary constable who had seen the victim on a previous
occasion when she had complained about her ex-partner.
The inspector in charge of the team that took the statement
did not use the duty inspector’s handover sheet to alert the
next inspector about the case.

The probationary constable was then away for five days.

On his return, he referred the case to the domestic violence
unit. No positive action was taken, no proper risk assessment
carried out and no referral made to the domestic violence
unit before then. The domestic violence officer, who had
little experience in the post, was going on leave for three
days and decided to leave the case until his return. Two days
later, the woman was murdered and it came to light that
the perpetrator had exhibited similar abusive behaviour in
previous relationships.

The key lessons identified from this case are the need to
capture intelligence on any previous history of perpetrators,
the need for experienced supervision of incident reports to
ensure action when urgent, and the need to treat seriously
crimes such as cutting brake pipes.

Domestic violence

A large part of the Committee’s early
work has focused on domestic violence
incidents and on the learning that

has arisen for police forces following
specific cases. The major issue to

come out of the cases that have been
reviewed by the Committee has been
the need for a co-ordinated overview of
all relevant incidents and intelligence
by staff with specialist training in
domestic violence. Domestic violence
requires an inclusive and co-ordinated
response — coherent control of the
investigation on the one hand, and
effective communication with the

14

victim on the other. This then needs to
be set against a robust risk assessment
and the information needs to be
shared with other forces and relevant
agencies. The role of domestic violence
units within police forces is crucial.

Road trafficincidents

Road traffic incidents involving the
police are of concern to the public,
police forces and the IPCC. Incidents
can occur when police are driving in a
variety of capacities — responding to
an emergency call, pursuing a

vehicle that has failed to stop, or
simply being on patrol —and they
can have a very detrimental effect

on public confidence in the police.
The investigation of incidents can
take up a significant amount of public
resources, and the incidents cause
suffering and pain to those involved.
While specific high-profile cases can
receive much media attention, there
remains very little robust evidence
available to inform public debate and
policy development.

The IPCC recently conducted a study
to examine the road traffic incidents
that have resulted in death or serious
injury over the two-and-a-half-year
period from April 2004 to September
2006.The study analysed trends in
the data and looked at the nature
and circumstances of the incidents in
more depth. In addition, it aimed to
highlight any lessons that could be
learnt for policy and practice, to help
to prevent future incidents.

During the first two-and-a-half years
of the IPCC’s work, the number of
police road traffic incidents involving
death and serious injury remained
broadly steady. Pursuit incidents
generally involved young male drivers,
who were often disqualified from
driving, uninsured and (in many cases)
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inexperienced. Most of those who
were seriously or fatally injured in
these incidents were the drivers of the
pursued vehicles or their passengers.
However, many individuals in
unrelated vehicles were also affected,
as well as cyclists and pedestrians. The
police drivers involved were generally
male and had an average age of 34.

The most common time for pursuits
to take place was over the course of
the weekend and during the evening,
with the majority being initiated for
traffic violations or offences. Many

of the drivers of the pursued vehicles
were driving in a dangerous or reckless
manner before the pursuit began.

A series of recommendations have
come out of this report, including
the need for data recorders to be
fitted to all police vehicles (and the
need to make use of the data when
an incident occurs), and the need to
invite ACPO to consider what types
of police vehicle are appropriate

for emergency responses and to
provide guidance.

Healthcare (including
mental health)

Police and emergency health services
often find themselves coping

with situations together — such as
responding to a major road incident
or dealing with a brawl in a local
pub.They have a responsibility to
work together to protect children,
reduce anti-social behaviour, reduce
the misuse of drugs and respond to
terrorist acts. Ambulance services, the
police and accident and emergency
departments are often under similar
pressures —having to respond quickly
to events, suffering from resource
constraints, and making decisions
that may affect lives.

9780102945560_Text / Sig: 9/ Plate A

A 25-year-old man died after being thrown from his motorcycle,
which was being pursued by a police motorcycle. The officer
believed that the vehicle was untaxed; when its rider failed

to stop, the officer pursued him along a number of roads.

The man appeared to have been thrown from his motorcycle
after losing control on a bend.

The IPCC-managed investigation found that the officer was

in breach of his force’s policy on motorcycle pursuits,and he
was given a written warning.

The IPCC Commissioner dealing with the case agreed with
the police force that it should clarify its guidelines in relation
to motorcycle pursuits to help to reduce the risk of similar
incidents happening again. The lessons from the case were
fed into the national research project carried out by the IPCC
into road trafficincidents.

During the past year, the IPCC and
the Healthcare Commission have
been working together to examine
the interactions between ambulance
services, the police and accident and
emergency departments: difficulties
in joint working had been identified
through both organisations’ review
of the circumstances of the death

of 37-year-old Christopher Alder.

He was assaulted outside a nightclub
in Hull in 1998, and was attended and
treated by a variety of services —an
ambulance crew, police officers and
medical staff in a hospital accident
and emergency department. He was
eventually taken into custody and
died in the reception area of a local
police station.

The review was published in February
2006, and soon afterwards the two
organisations hosted a joint national
seminar to help to secure the support
of professional bodies in both police
and health services. This support

was needed in order to successfully
deliver changes on the ground in

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2006/07

15



9780102945560_Text / Sig: 9/ Plate B

Learning the Lessons

An IPCC investigation found collective failures in the
treatment of a vulnerable man.The man’s mother complained
to the police force about her son’s treatment when he

was arrested and detained in 2005, and the matter was
subsequently referred to the IPCC, which conducted an
independent investigation.

The investigation concluded that, following the man’s initial
arrest on suspicion of criminal damage, there was a failure
by police officers and a social worker to fully identify his
vulnerability and his need for support. As a result, he did not
have access to an appropriate adult and was interviewed
without one being present. He was later released without
charge in the early evening wearing only a paper suit after
he had destroyed his own clothing and refused an offer of
alternative clothing. He also had no accommodation, because
the incident that had originally led to his arrest had made his
home uninhabitable.

Over the 16 hours that followed, there were numerous
incidents of the police force receiving calls from the man or
having direct contact with him. There were also calls from
members of the public about the man’s behaviour —including
one report that he was jumping in front of cars. The following
morning, he was arrested on suspicion of possessing an
offensive weapon — a piece of wood. Once at the station,

a mental health assessment was carried out, and the man
was detained under the Mental Health Act 1983 and taken

to hospital.

The IPCC investigation identified a number of lessons to be
learnt by the police force. The report recommended that:

better documentation needs to be kept in relation to
concerns about the health of individuals in custody

the training of police call centre staff in relation to dealing
with potential mental health issues needs to be reviewed

warning markers about individuals need to be added to
the Police National Computer

a review of partnership working with local social and
housing authorities needs to take place, to ensure that the
needs of vulnerable adults in police custody are assessed
and met.

local practice and to start to plan
how recommendations could be
taken forward.

The aim of the seminar was to find
out what needed to be done, by whom
and when, to reduce the likelihood

of similar incidents occurring in the
future. Arange of organisations were
represented, including ACPO, the Royal
College of Emergency Medicine, the
Royal College of Nursing, the British
Association for Emergency

Medicine and the Association of
Forensic Physicians.

In order to progress the
recommendations, some of the

key organisations made specific
commitments about the steps that
they would take to improve the
interaction between health agencies
and the police.

In addition, the IPCC and the
Healthcare Commission signed a
protocol that sets a framework for
how the two organisations can work
together to improve health and
policing in England. The protocol
provides that where an investigation
is required following an incident
involving the police and health
agencies, all aspects of the incident
can be considered.

The IPCC has also been working
with the Healthcare Inspectorate
Wales to develop a memorandum of
understanding. More information on
this can be found in the ‘Wales and
South West region’ section in
Chapter 5 of this report.
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Dogs

The IPCC undertook a review of
policing with dogs in South Yorkshire.
This followed a significant increase in
reports of police dogs biting civilians
in the area. The review resulted in the
following key recommendations:

® South Yorkshire Police should
consider providing more in-depth,
specialised training (not dissimilar
to that given to firearms officers)
to dog handlers on the conflict
management model and the use
of force. This is entirely appropriate
given that the deployment of a
dog is a significant use of force.
South Yorkshire Police dog training
section has recognised that there
isa gap in the training and has
devised a training package to meet
this recommendation.

¢ Consideration should be given to
ensuring that dogs and handlers
deployed near crowds at public
order events are trained to work
alongside Level 1 public order
units. The deployment should be
overseen by a specialist. This would
ensure that there is the capacity
to respond appropriately to any
fast-moving situations that might
flare up.

¢ Football match commanders and
public order commanders should
be given training on the use of
dogs and on the recommendations
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The IPCC upheld an appeal against the findings of a police
investigation into a complaint by a man about the way

an officer deployed his police dog during a large-scale
public disturbance.

Several people in the area at the time had complained of being
bitten and of their clothing being damaged by a police dog,
and the IPCC supervised an investigation by the force into the
complaints. The force did not uphold any of the complaints and
one complainant appealed against this finding to the IPCC.

This appeal was upheld. The Commissioner who dealt with

the case commented: “Having examined the evidence and the
circumstances of this incident very carefully, | am satisfied that
the police dog was used inappropriately. This was not justified
by the circumstances that the dog handler was facing and was
not in line with force guidelines on the use of police dogs.”

The officer received a written warning as a result of his conduct
on the day of the disturbance and the force was invited to
review its decisions in respect of the other complaints involving
the officer. The force also implemented significantly improved
dog-handling training that went beyond the guidelines of the
National Police Dog Assessment Model.
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Custody

A key issue identified by the IPCC is
the use of police custody as a ‘place of
safety’ A place of safety is defined by
Section 136 of the Mental Health Act
1983, which states that ‘if a constable
finds ... a person who appears to him
to be suffering from mental disorder
and to be in immediate need of care or
control ... he may ... remove that person
to a place of safety’. This place of safety
may be a ‘hospital, police station,
mental nursing home or residential
home, or any other suitable place’

The IPCC has been conducting
research into this area because of

concerns raised in a number of its
cases about the suitability of police
custody for Section 136 detainees.
The IPCC study is made up of two
parts. The first part aims to quantify
the extent to which police cells

are used as places of safety under
Section 136 of the Mental Health Act
1983 — something about which little
is known. The study also examines
the length of time spent in custody,
the profile of detainees and the
circumstances under which they
left detention.

Initial findings from the first part of
the study include the following:

® During 2005/06, approximately
11,500 people were detained in
police custody under Section 136.
Due to the way that police
detentions are recorded, this figure
is likely to be an underestimate.

¢ Thirty-three per cent of those
detained under Section 136 were
female and 62 per cent were
male.The gender of 5 per cent
of detainees was unknown.

¢ The age of the Section 136
detainees ranged from 12 to
89 years old. The average age was
36 years old.

¢ The largest ethnic group of
Section 136 detainees was white
people (77 per cent), followed by
black people (4 per cent), Asian
people (4 per cent), Chinese people
or people from an ‘other ethnic
group’ (1 per cent), and people
of mixed ethnicity (1 per cent).
Ethnicity was unknown or not
stated for 13 per cent of detainees.

¢ Aswell as being detained under
Section 136, individuals are
sometimes detained for alleged
criminal offences.
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¢ The average length of time in
police custody was ten hours, with
the vast majority of detainees
leaving police custody after
18 hours.

The second part of the study will
look at variations in detentions
across police forces and will seek

to examine the reasons for these
through interviews with police
custody managers and healthcare
representatives. This part of the
study will also seek to identify good
practice and ways in which numbers
of detentions in police custody might
be reduced. The findings of the study
are expected to be published in full in
autumn 2007.

Joint forum on deaths in custody

In August 2006, a new high-level
group was launched with the aim

of helping to reduce deaths in
custody. The Forum for Preventing
Deaths in Custody is made up jointly
of healthcare and criminal justice
professionals, including individuals
from the police, the prison service and
the Department of Health. The main
inspection and investigative agencies
are also represented.

The idea of the forum was first
floated in July 2004, when the IPCC
suggested that there was a need

for a system to capture cross-sector
learning following deaths in custody.
The Joint Commission on Human
Rights (JCHR) published a report on
deaths in custody in December 2004,
and recommended the establishment
of a multi-agency body to focus
specifically on deaths in custody.

The work of the forum includes the
deaths of people in prisons, police
stations, immigration detention
centres and secure mental hospitals.
The forum also focuses on those who
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A 25-year-old man died in hospital in December 2004 after
collapsing while in custody at a police station.

The IPCC's managed investigation concluded that ‘neither the
collective action nor inaction of the staff was responsible for
the death of the man’and that certain police staff should be
commended for their attempts to resuscitate him. However,

a number of procedural failures in the man’s treatment at

the police station were uncovered. In particular, there were
repeated breaches of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984
(PACE) Codes of Practice and the police force’s procedures:

No prisoner risk assessment was undertaken.

There was a failure to ensure that the man was visited
and roused every 30 minutes, as is standard procedure
for detainees suspected of being intoxicated.

There was a failure to complete accurate records
of detention.

As a result, an officer was reprimanded and another received
words of advice.

The IPCC findings, published in December 2006,
recommended that the police force:

review its procedures governing the use of CCTV in
vulnerable person cells

ensure that there is a clear understanding among all
custody officers of their responsibilities

develop a protocol with the local health authority to
provide clear guidance on dealing with individuals
requiring intervention under the Mental Health Act 1983.

have been released from custody
and are under the supervision of the
National Probation Service.

John Wadham, the IPCC’s Deputy
Chair, currently chairs the forum.

Suicide after arrest

The IPCC has identified concerns
over the number of people who
commit suicide shortly after being
released from police custody: IPCC
research has suggested that as
many as 200 people may die in
these circumstances each year.
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The police are required to report all
such instances to the Home Office
and the IPCC, but IPCC research has
found that there are significant
discrepancies between police forces,
with some large forces reporting no
such cases at all.

The IPCC and ACPO worked together
to develop guidance for forces on
dealing with suicides following police
contact, which was issued in April
2007.The guidance recommends that
forces should introduce systems to
refer to the IPCC all suicides occurring
within 48 hours of release from police
custody. Suicides that occur more
than 48 hours after release should
also be referred to the IPCC if there are
any concerns relating to a ten-point
checklist, which includes whether
policy and procedures were correctly
adhered to and whether there was
any indication of recent or current
suicidal intent.

Firearms

The IPCC is committed to ensuring
that any lessons for the police service
arising from firearms incidents —
including fatal shootings by the
police — are fed back in a timely way.
We have developed a protocol for
disseminating learning from
investigations into fatal shootings by
the police: wherever possible, national
recommendations will be sent to the
ACPO Firearms Secretariat at (or
before) the end of the investigation.
These will be analysed by the
Secretariat, reviewed by the ACPO
Firearms Committee and
disseminated to forces as appropriate.
The IPCC Commissioner responsible
for a particular force area will raise
any specific local recommendations
directly with local ACPO offices.

Principal issues raised to date include
the following:

® The importance of firearms
command training and the use
of only trained or accredited
commanders in firearms roles.
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¢ The significance of control room

handling of spontaneous incidents.
It is vital to ensure that control
rooms are always adequately
staffed with qualified personnel
who can deal effectively with
dynamic and critical incidents.
Specific training in the handling

of firearms incidents has been
recommended for control

room staff.

The importance of post-incident
management. The experience

of investigations to date has
revealed varied practices across the
country in respect of post-incident
management, and these practices
are not always in accordance

with the ACPO guidance manual.
Recommendations on post-
incident management have been
made, and these are being fed into
a review of the manual.

The role of recording — both

of strategic briefings and of
operations themselves. Video
footage provides a rapid ability to
prove or disprove accounts given
by officers involved. With suitable
technology, routine video recording
of firearms operations would
greatly assist any subsequent
investigation, and would benefit
both police officers and the public.
Similarly, the question of the
threat to which the officers were
responding can become an issue,
but the recording of strategic
intelligence and other briefings
would remove much of the doubt
which may arise later.
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A 44-year-old man died as a result of a self-inflicted
gunshot wound to the chest in September 2005 following
a police pursuit.

Police officers had attempted to speak to the man at a house
about allegations that he had threatened to kill a woman.

However, the man left the property in a car before police could

arrest him, and was pursued along two motorways before
being stopped on the M.

As officers approached the vehicle, the man was seen to pick
up a firearm. A baton round was discharged at the vehicle,
but the man was seen to shoot himself in the chest. Despite
receiving immediate medical attention, the gunshot wound
proved fatal.

The investigation cleared the police of any blame, but it
did recommend that the police should have made better
use of firearms tactical advisers. The Silver Commander
and Force Incident Manager were making decisions during
the pursuit without consulting with the firearms tactical
advisers. As there was a suggestion that the man was armed
—a suggestion that was not confirmed until the man was
stopped — it was recommended that, in future incidents,
the firearms tactical adviser should be deployed alongside
the Silver Commander, to be in a position to give advice on
alternative options.
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Central region

Key cases

Michael Powell

Michael Powell died in police custody
on 7 September 2003. The case was
initially investigated under the
supervision of the IPCC’s predecessor,
the Police Complaints Authority,

and was subsequently taken over

by the IPCC under the same
supervision powers.

In March 2007, IPCC Commissioner
John Crawley confirmed that none
of the West Midlands police officers
acquitted of criminal offences
following the death of Michael Powell
were to face disciplinary charges.
The IPCC did, however, criticise
important aspects of the police
officers”handling of the incident
that led to Mr Powell’s death (which
started when his mother called for
police assistance at her home) and
urged the force to ensure that key
lessons are fully implemented.

Craig Boyd
Craig Boyd was arrested by Derbyshire
Constabulary officers for alleged

assault on the night of 15 March 2004.

At 4am on 16 March 2004, Mr Boyd
was found dead in his cell.

Following the IPCC-supervised
investigation by Greater Manchester
Police, an officer was convicted of
misconduct in a public office.
Criminal charges against two other
officers were dropped.

Commenting on the outcomes, IPCC
Commissioner John Crawley said:

“The IPCC will now invite Derbyshire
Constabulary to consider whether
there are misconduct (disciplinary)
issues to be referred to the IPCC for
consideration regarding officers
involved in Mr Boyd’s arrest and
detention. We will also want to ensure
that the very serious organisational
learning issues arising out of

this incident have now been fully
addressed by the force, and will
highlight any that are relevant to any
resumed inquest.

“I'am grateful to Greater Manchester
Police for undertaking an exceptionally
thorough, robust and professional
investigation. Craig Boyd’s untimely
death was over three years ago now
and | know it is important for all
concerned — particularly for his family
but also for the officers involved and
the force — that we now progress this
case to a clear conclusion as quickly
as possible.”

Aaron James

The IPCC independent investigation
into the response by West Midlands
Police to a report of an armed man
concluded in August 2006.The
incident took place in October 2005,
when police received several reports
—including one from the fire service
—of anarmed man in the Newtown
area. Armed response teams were
deployed to search for the man.
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Officers saw a man stumble and fall in
Melbourne Avenue. They approached
him and found that he had gunshot
wounds to his head and arm.The
officers gave first aid, and paramedics
were called. The man later died

in hospital.

The following day, IPCC Commissioner
Amerdeep Somal was able to issue an
interim statement to confirm that the
man — Aaron James —was not killed
by a bullet of the type that is issued
to the police. This was important in
allaying community tension, which
was running high at the time.

The IPCC investigation ran in
conjunction with the murder
investigation by West Midlands Police,
with information flowing between
the two investigations. The IPCC
investigation found the following:

® Firearms officers from West
Midlands Police did not shoot
Aaron James.

¢ There was no evidence to
substantiate the fact that any of
the police officers investigated
in relation to this incident had
committed any criminal offence.

® Neither was there any evidence
to substantiate the fact that any
of the police officers investigated
in relation to this incident had
committed any disciplinary
offence.

The report went on to commend
two police constables for the initial
care that they had administered

to Aaron James at the time he

was shot, recognising the difficult
circumstances that the constables
faced and acknowledging that their
‘main focus was the preservation of
Aaron James’ life’.
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A day in the life: Bob Lilley, Deputy Senior Investigator (DSI)

“I have worked at the IPCC for just over three years — | joined
a few months before the organisation was launched. Prior
to working here, | worked on the development of a DNA
programme and as part of a cold case review team. Before
that I was a police officer for 30 years.

“The job of a DSl is varied. | usually start the day by checking
emails and messages to progress the investigations that

| currently have running. | might then meet key people
—these could include complainants, witnesses, police officers,
members of police Professional Standards Departments
(PSDs) and coroners.

“If an incident has occurred in my region, | might be asked

to go out and undertake a scene assessment to gather
information and evidence — at any time of the day or night.

| also have to attend post-mortem examinations in cases
where someone has died in police custody or where there has
been some police contact prior to their death.

“The rest of my time is taken up with reviewing reports
from police forces on cases where the IPCC is managing the
investigation. This can involve challenging the report and
requesting that further work be carried out.

“Another key part of my role is managing and supporting

my team of investigators, who come from a wide range of
backgrounds. This can be one of the most challenging but also
the most rewarding parts of my job.

“The IPCC is a young organisation, and we are constantly
learning and evolving. The best thing about working here
is that we are making a real difference — that gives me
tremendous job satisfaction.”
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Colette Lynch

In August 2006, the IPCC published
the findings of its independent
investigation into the circumstances
surrounding the death in Rugby of
Colette Lynch.

The investigation findings outlined
the need for major improvements
in force procedures and training.
Key recommendations included
the following:

¢ All reported domestic violence
incidents should be brought to the
attention of a supervisory officer,
including the communications
centre inspector.

® The force’s domestic violence,
call-handling and crime-recording
policies should be reviewed and
made fit for purpose.

® Much more robust management
systems should be implemented
and led at chief officer level - to
ensure that front-line staff are
implementing and adhering to
critically important policies to
combat domestic crime.

¢ Changes should be made to
prevent the premature closing
down of incidents on the force
call-logging system.

¢ There should be improved
supervisory staff levels and
management of junior staff within
the Rugby operational area, with
scope for improved team working
and leadership.

¢ Disciplinary action should be taken
against several officers and staff.

In February 2007, the IPCC used the
new power granted under the Police
(Conduct) Regulations 2004 for the
first time to direct Warwickshire
Police to hold a misconduct hearing
in public.The hearing is expected to
take place in autumn 2007.

The IPCC has received detailed
plans from the force addressing
all of the major organisational
recommendations.

Police pursuit

On 13 January 2006, following a
brief police pursuit, a white Vauxhall
Calibra collided with a silver Seat
Alhambra in Suffolk, at the A1156
junction with the Nacton village
turn-off. Both vehicles subsequently
caught fire and three people — two
men and a woman — were taken

to hospital following the incident.
The driver of the Vauxhall Calibra
was critically injured, although he
subsequently recovered.

The IPCC published the findings of

its investigation into the incident in
October 2006. IPCC Commissioner Len
Jackson stated: “Having examined all
of the circumstances of this incident,
the IPCC has concluded that the police
officer acted proportionately and
appropriately on this occasion.

Beyond this, | would like to commend
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him for his extreme bravery. Without
concern for his own personal safety,
on arriving at the scene of the
collision, he immediately pulled three
people from the burning cars. This
selfless action undoubtedly prevented
a greater tragedy for the victims of
this incident.”

Important issues in this region

Speed camera review

Derbyshire Constabulary suffered a
significant amount of negative media
coverage relating to the use of speed
cameras following the publication of
data detailing the number of police
vehicles that were caught by speed
cameras during 2004.

As part of the IPCC’s guardianship
function, Commissioner Amerdeep
Somal requested that the force
undertake a full review of these
camera activations. As a result of this
work, a number of recommendations
were made and improvements were
implemented by the force.

Community events

Staff from the Central region attended
a range of community events to

raise the profile of the IPCC among
local people. These included the
Norfolk Constabulary Gala Day on 3
September 2006 and a World Mental
Health Day event in Leicester on 10
October 2006, when the IPCC joined
with other organisations with an
interest in mental health issues to
share information about themselves —
both with the public and also with
each other.
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The IPCC Locally

London and South East
region

Key cases

Peter Woodhams

On 24 August 2006, the IPCC
announced that it would use its

own investigators to examine the
Metropolitan Police Service’s response
to the stabbing of Peter Woodhams

in January 2006.The Metropolitan
Police Service voluntarily referred the

A day in the life: Austen Cutten, Regional Policy Officer

“There are two main aspects to my role. The first is supporting
the Commissioners in carrying out their ‘guardianship’
function; this involves identifying opportunities for them to
meet people from local communities to talk about the police
complaints system and to promote the work of the IPCC.

| prepare presentations for the Commissioners to give and
often go out with them on visits. The second part of my role
involves developing and implementing IPCC policies within
the London and South East region.

“I have worked for the IPCC for just over two years. Previously
| worked for a think tank that promoted local democracy and
lobbied on behalf of local government.

“As well as going out on visits with Commissioners, my day
can involve attending meetings of key bodies or networks to
share information about what is happening on the ground
or to find out about best practice. For example, | am part

of the Metropolitan Police Authority’s (MPA's) Community
Monitoring Network Group on stop and search. | also work
closely with colleagues within the IPCC on key policies;

| have recently been involved in the development of the
IPCC’s gender equality scheme.

“The best thing about my job is going out and meeting local
people to talk about the IPCC and its work. People are always
really interested in what we do and often have good ideas
about ways for us to engage better with local communities.

I really enjoy the range of people | work with — both within
the IPCC and in the stakeholder organisations that we work
with. It is sometimes hard to do everything we would like to,
as resources are limited, but | have found it very rewarding to
be involved in developing policies to help the IPCC to evolve.”

case to the IPCC after Mr Woodhams
was shot dead in Canning Town, east
London.

The IPCC said: “It is vital that
MrWoodhams's family, the police
involved, and the public at large can
have confidence that their concerns
about the incident will be robustly
investigated.”

As a result of this investigation, in
May 2007 the IPCC announced that
two officers will face a misconduct
hearing, three have received written
warnings and one officer has been
given words of advice.

Deepcut Barracks

Private Geoff Gray died from two
gunshot wounds to the head

at Deepcut Barracks in Surrey

in September 2001. His parents
complained to the IPCC that Surrey
Police had investigated their son’s
death with their minds already made
up about the conclusion. The IPCC
undertook its own investigation, which
found that there was no coherent
evidence of any presupposition of the
outcome of the police investigation by
Surrey police officers.

Litter bin incident

An IPCC inquiry concluded that two
Metropolitan Police Service officers
should receive written warnings
after a complaint of racial abuse by a
15-year-old youth after he was lifted
up and placed in a litter bin by a
police constable.

The IPCC managed investigation was
carried out under the Metropolitan
Police Service’s internal investigations
command. It found that one officer
lifted the boy and placed him feet first
in the bin before releasing him after
no more than a second. A second
officer was found to have made an
obscene gesture.
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Deborah Glass, IPCC Commissioner,
said:“l accept that the incident was
not malicious, but it was clearly foolish
behaviour.The allegation of racial abuse
appears to be without foundation.

| believe that, in deciding the outcome,
it must be kept in proportion.lam not
excusing their conduct, but | feel that
written warnings keep the penalties

in proportion to the seriousness of
the incident. Under this procedure

the officers have accepted that they
breached the Code of Conduct.”

Steven Greene

The IPCC was praised by the coroner
for the comprehensiveness of its
investigation into the circumstances
surrounding the death of Steven
Greene, who died on the railway line
at West Malling in Kent in April 2006.

The IPCC investigation looked at
whether anything could have been
done by Kent Police to prevent

Mr Greene’s suicide after his former
partner had contacted the police

a number of times to warn them
that Mr Greene was planning to
commit suicide. As a result of the
investigation, a call centre operator
received a written warning and

five members of the force control
centre received words of advice.

A range of recommendations were
also made to Kent Police about steps
that could be taken to minimise the
risk of a similar incident occurring
again —for example that a separate
category for ‘threatened suicide’ be
created on the call-handling system.
These recommendations have been
implemented by Kent Police.

Racial abuse incident

Two Metropolitan Police Service
officers were required to resign in
October 2006 after a man complained
of being racially abused in a south-
east London police station.

9780102945560_Text / Sig: 15/ Plate A

The incident happened at around
12.40am on 1July 2005, just before
the complainant was brought into
custody at Plumstead police station
after being arrested. The complainant
alleged that a constable racially
abused him and he complained about
this to the custody sergeant. Three
police officers who witnessed the
incident came forward and reported
it to another custody sergeant.

Following the IPCC managed
investigation, the Metropolitan Police
Service Board required one constable
to resign for breaching the police
code on politeness and tolerance

by referring to the complainant in

a racist way and also for bringing

the Metropolitan Police Service

into discredit. A second constable
was required to resign for failing to
oppose the behaviour and failing to
report it. He was also found to have
failed to reach the required standard
of honesty and integrity in that he
submitted a prepared statement that
falsely claimed that he did not see

or hear the offending behaviour.

The officers have appealed this
decision and the matter is subject

to current proceedings.

IPCC Commissioner Mehmuda Mian
Pritchard commended the officers
who had reported their colleague’s
racist behaviour.

Building confidence in the police
complaints system among young people
Work in the London and South East
region has focused on increasing
confidence in the police complaints
system among young people.

In October 2006, IPCC Commissioner
Mehmuda Mian Pritchard visited Essex
Police’s Pepys Youth Forum to talk

to 14—19-year-olds about the police
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complaints system and to discuss
members’ views and experiences.

Additionally, a series of four events
were held in conjunction with the
Federation of London Youth Clubs
(London Youth), aimed at providing
information about the police
complaints system to young people,
and helping to build confidence in
the system.

The workshops, which were held

in Hammersmith, Hackney, King’s
Cross and Brixton, were designed
and delivered by a group of young
people known as ‘peer educators’.
The sessions were based around role
play, and were followed by discussion.
Positive feedback was received from
participants, and London Youth will,
in due course, be presenting a full
report, including recommendations
for effective engagement with

young people.

Local resolution project

Building on work being carried out
nationally by the IPCC to promote
local resolution as an effective
mechanism for resolving the vast
majority of complaints against
the police, the region has been
working to develop a pilot project
within the London Borough of Brent
aimed at increasing public and
police confidence in the use of
local resolution.

The project has two key components.
Firstly, it has entailed working

with police managers at borough
level —and with support from the
Metropolitan Police Service corporate
PSD —to develop a local resolution
training programme that is open

to police inspectors and sergeants
within Brent. The sessions will use

a mixture of formal presentations
and interactive case study scenarios
to help to ensure that the IPCC’s key
messages are delivered to officers,
building their confidence in the local
resolution process.

The second aspect of the pilot project
focuses on community engagement,
by working in partnership with the
borough’s community safety unit.

It has involved running a series of
public awareness sessions about
the IPCC and the police complaints
system. These sessions will focus on
key target audiences such as young
people, faith groups, and advice
agencies and partnerships.

The Brent pilot project will be robustly
monitored and evaluated by both the
IPCC and the MPA. The MPA's work will
include some dip-sampling of local
resolution cases, interviews with both
complainants and officers involved

in local resolution and, finally,an
analysis of statistical data in relation
to local resolution trends. The project’s
evaluation report will be published in
later in 2007.
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North region

Key cases

The Cochrane family

An independent investigation found
individual and systemic failings

in relation to Greater Manchester
Police’s dealings with Alex and
Maureen Cochrane. The Cochranes
died and their daughter, Lucy, was
seriously injured as a result of an
arson attack on their home on

12 January 2006. Michael and Jane
Connor were sentenced to life
imprisonment for murder, and their
daughter, Natalie, was convicted

of manslaughter in relation to the
attack, following a six-week trial.

On 7January 2006, there had been
anincident at the Cochranes’ home,
during which a fluid was poured
down the front door and a tree was
uprooted in the garden. Following
the fatal arson attack, concerns were
expressed about the response of
Greater Manchester Police to the
earlier incident, and the force referred
the matter to the IPCC.

The IPCC investigation found that
there had been failings in the duty

of care that the Cochrane family had
received. This included the fact that an
officer had given his personal mobile
number to the family. Although this
was probably done with the best of
intentions, it only acted to circumvent
Greater Manchester Police’s

recording systems. The investigation
also found that the force’s crime
recording systems were ‘outdated’
and ‘inflexible’and recommended
that they be reviewed. As a result of
the investigation, a police constable
received a formal written warning
and a police inspector received words
of advice.
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A day in the life: Nicholas Long, Commissioner

“No two days are the same for a Commissioner. But a typical
day might start with me waking up quite early at home in
York and going online while | am still fresh to deal with any
outstanding emails and documents that require careful
attention. | might also have a catch-up phone conversation
with my assistant. Much of a Commissioner’s life involves
working remotely, and a laptop and mobile phone are the two
most important communication tools.

“| catch the crowded 7.44am train to Wakefield and then
travel on to one of our two offices for the region. My

assistant is based in Wakefield, and our occasional face-to-
face meetings are essential for dealing with administrative
matters. On a Monday, we have a video conference regional
briefing at 9.10am and a national weekly round-up at 9.30am.
These are both useful sessions that help me to understand
better what is going on across the country. More meetings
might follow. Once a month | have a meeting with senior
investigators to review any progress on independent and
managed investigations. These supplement regular progress
reports for individual cases, and an hour or so in the Wakefield
office enables me to have numerous brief conversations with
casework managers and investigators on specific matters.

“I regularly meet senior police officers from the forces for
which | have responsibility, as well as other key people

with whom it is important for the IPCC to maintain a good
relationship. These will include coroners, CPS representatives
and community representatives. These meetings tell me a lot
about how we are doing and provide an opportunity for me to
explain and discuss current issues affecting the IPCC. On this
day | travel to Sheffield to meet the deputy chief constable

for an hour, as well as squeezing in an external (non-police)
meeting and a meeting with a community representative.

“I then travel to London for a meeting with representatives
from custodial agencies. | am the IPCC's Commissioner lead
on custody issues and regularly attend national meetings,
listening to the concerns of others and explaining the IPCC’s
position. | am particularly concerned about deaths in custody
and work closely with fellow Commissioners who lead on
mental health issues.

“I finish the day at the London and South East office reading
and responding to emails, before attending an event in the
evening — to listen to the views of stakeholders.”
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Bravery commended

Norman Sinton died when the

car he was in crashed while being
pursued by officers from Cumbria
Constabulary: the car burst into
flames shortly after a collision.
The IPCC’s investigation concluded
that the officers had acted
professionally during the pursuit
and should be commended for
their bravery in rescuing two of the
occupants of the burning car.

Harold Shipman

The IPCC decided not to uphold

an appeal by a member of Harold
Shipman’s family against Greater
Manchester Police’s decision not

to record their complaint. Harold
Shipman was a GP convicted in
January 2000 of murdering 15 of his
patients. He was later found dead
in his prison cell. The complaint
concerned the force’s refusal to return
to the family a typewriter and two
medical bags that had belonged to
Dr Shipman.

[PCC Commissioner, Naseem Malik,
found that Greater Manchester
Police’s decision not to return the

property was a policy matter rather
than a conduct matter, which meant
that there was no requirement for it
to be recorded as a complaint under
the criteria laid down by the Police
Reform Act 2002.

Michael Doran

In August 2006, the IPCC concluded
its independent investigation into
Greater Manchester Police’s covert
law enforcement methods and record
keeping, and also into how they dealt
with a report that Michael Doran,

an informant (or covert human
intelligence source), was missing.

Mr Doran was murdered in March
2001, although his body has never
been found. Stephen McColl, who
was also an informant, was convicted
of his murder following a trial at
Liverpool Crown Court.

The matter was referred to the IPCC
in September 2004 after Greater
Manchester Police began to suspect
that Mr Doran had been murdered.

The IPCC investigation found no
evidence of criminal conduct by
officers involved in the handling of
Mr McColl and Mr Doran. But the
investigation did find failings both in
the systems that the force had in place
for handling informants at that time
and in the performance of individual
officers in the course of their duties.

As a result of the performance

of duty issues, four officers have
received words of advice from Greater
Manchester Police. The IPCC has also
made a series of recommendations
aimed at improving the force’s
management of covert law
enforcement techniques, including
improved record keeping.
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Important issues in this region
Asian community forum

InJune 2006, a forum was held in
Blackburn for members of the Asian
community. The aim of the forum
was to explain the work of the IPCC
and to help the IPCC to understand
more about the issues affecting
that community.

More than 40 people attended the
event, and issues raised included
the following:

® To build confidence in the IPCC,
police officers need to be seen
to be held accountable for
their actions.

¢ Complaints about the stop-and-
search policy are low because
people are not aware of the IPCC.

¢ The IPCC needs to highlight the
difference between itself and
the police.

¢ |PCCsurgeries, reporting centres or
community access points would be
a good idea.

® A pool of volunteers should be
used as ‘community champions’.

¢ The emphasis should be on raising
awareness among younger people.

Stakeholder and public work

A guardianship action plan has been
set up. This is essentially a calendar of
events to ensure that the IPCC meets
regularly with its key stakeholder
groups. These stakeholders include
representatives of police force
independent advisory groups; local
Police Federation representatives;
key communities (see the ‘Asian
community forum’ section above);
racial equality councils; student
unions; the local Black Police
Association representatives; and
lesbian, gay, bisexual and
transgender groups.
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Commissioners have represented
the IPCC at many community events,
including taking part in phone-ins
as part of the Caribbean Carnival

of Manchester and the Bob Marley
Reggae Festival. These were an
opportunity to explain more about
the IPCC’'s work to the communities
of south Manchester (which
includes Moss Side and Hulme).
Commissioners have also attended
conferences on subjects such as
forced marriage, women in policing,
deaths in custody, and gypsy and
traveller issues.

Work to inform police stakeholders
about IPCC processes and to share
best practice through meetings and
training sessions has continued.

All forces in the region have been
visited to discuss the new casework
processes, and best practice training
days have been held with police
authorities and police forces to
discuss referrals, appeals and
dispensations.
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The IPCC Locally

Wales and South West
region

Key cases

Child A

An independent investigation was
carried out into South Wales Police’s
response to the abduction of a
three-year-old child (Child A) from
her home by Craig Sweeney on
2January 2006.

A day in the life: Liz Pollard, Casework Manager

“I joined the IPCC eight months ago and am based in the
Cardiff office. My previous job was with a firm of solicitors.

“My day varies enormously depending on what comes in.

| get involved when a serious complaint is first referred to
the IPCC by a police force. | make an initial assessment and
recommend to the Regional Director how the case should be
handled. When the IPCC is supervising a case, | work closely
with the investigating officer to ensure that the investigation
is being handled properly by the police force carrying it out.
In independent and managed cases, | am responsible for
ensuring that the police force and the complainant are kept
fully informed of the progress of the investigation.

“l'act as liaison for the IPCC with Devon and Cornwall
Constabulary. This involves identifying any issues or trends
within complaints about this force and flagging them up

to the IPCC Commissioner or the force PSD. | also attend
meetings with the PSD every two months to discuss and
resolve any issues that have arisen. And | deal with appeals for
complaints that have been investigated by the police.

“I enjoy the challenge of my role. The work can be complex,
but it is so varied and it’s never boring. | have to work to build
and maintain good relationships with the PSD —even when
we are giving them critical feedback. | also work closely with
investigators and with the IPCC legal team, which can help
to provide information about police policies and procedures.

“I'am part of a good team in the Wales and South West office.
There is lots of co-operation and everyone is open, supportive
and friendly. It is great having a job that means something,
and | love being able to look forward to going to work in

the morning!”

32

On g January 2006, Child A's father
complained to South Wales Police.

He alleged that despite the force
having being made aware of the
perpetrator’s address and identity
shortly after the abduction, the
response was ineffective and too slow,
failing to prevent the serious sexual
assault of his daughter.

The IPCC investigation partly upheld
the father’s complaint: it found that
Child A could have been prevented
from being subjected to a further
terrifying ordeal if there had been
prompt and appropriate action on the
part of the police force. Mr Sweeney
should not have been able to leave
his home address and cross the
Severn Bridge into England. While the
investigation concluded that there
might have been the potential to
visit Mr Sweeney’s home at an earlier
stage, it also found that there was
insufficient evidence to substantiate
the allegation that this would have
prevented the assault that took place
at the house.

During the course of the independent
investigation, the IPCC identified
deficiencies in South Wales Police’s
procedures and policies for dealing
with child abduction, and inadequate
procedures and policies for dealing
with critical incidents. The IPCC made
recommendations, to the force about
policy and training on how to deal
with abduction cases and about the
use of and access to intelligence
about sex offenders by control room
staff dealing with a major incident.
The force responded positively to the
recommendations, and the IPCC is
now working to ensure that they

are implemented.
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The IPCC recommended that officers
face a misconduct panel for failing to
be conscientious and diligent in the
execution of their duties. In addition,
the IPCC identified national issues
around data sharing for the Violent
and Sex Offender Register (ViSOR)
held by police forces; these issues
have been shared with ACPO.

Hayley Richards

The IPCC conducted an independent
investigation into Wiltshire Police’s
handling of Hayley Richards’ report
of domestic violence. In April 2004,
the investigation concluded that
the force’s response was poor, and
found that institutional failings led
to the force’s failure to arrest Hugo
Quintas on two separate occasions.
Mr Quintas went on to murder Hayley
two weeks after the reported attack.

The investigation considered seven
separate complaints made by Hayley’s
mother: two were upheld fully and a
third was partially upheld.

The IPCC welcomed the wide-ranging
and positive response from Wiltshire
Police to the report, and the force’s
acceptance of the recommendations
within it. Wiltshire Police agreed to
take conduct action against an acting
sergeant and to give a verbal warning
to a member of police staff.

Important issues in this region
Memorandum of understanding
between the IPCC and the Healthcare
Inspectorate Wales

The IPCC and the Healthcare
Inspectorate Wales have been working
together to develop a memorandum
of understanding setting out the
agreed framework for co-operation,
collaboration and communication in
relation to the investigation of serious
injuries and deaths in police custody.

9780102945560_Text / Sig: 18 / Plate A

This applies to cases where there are
also concerns about the quality and
safety of patient care provided both by
the NHS in Wales and in independent
healthcare settings.

The memorandum of understanding
defines the circumstances under
which joint working will apply,
while confirming that there will be
no impact on the statutory duty of
either the IPCC or the Healthcare
Inspectorate Wales. The principle of
joint working is that improvements
in healthcare services and in the
effectiveness of the police service
can be achieved through open and
transparent working practices.

The functions identified within the
memorandum of understanding
include the sharing of resources, joint
investigations and reviews (where
practical), the identification and
dissemination of good practice, and
training and guidance. If issues of
significance are brought to light as a
result of a joint review, a joint decision
can be made to bring these to the
attention of the Secretary of State for
Health and/or the Home Secretary.
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The IPCC Regional Director for the
Wales and South West region and

the Deputy Chief Executive of the
Healthcare Inspectorate Wales have
begun discussions about how this
joint working will be brought to the
attention of the relevant custody suite
personnel in each of the Welsh forces.

Stakeholder and public work

The Commissioners for Wales and the
South West have met with a range of
key stakeholders during the year. For
example, the Commissioner for Wales,
Tom Davies, addressed delegates at
the Welsh Citizens Advice Bureau’s
Annual General Meetings (AGMs) in
Llandudno, Carmarthen and Cardiff
at the beginning of September 2006,
and lan Bynoe, Commissioner for

the South West, attended the Victim
Support Annual General Meeting in
Devizes in October 2006.

The region also organised seminars
with police authorities and Race
Equality Councils from South West
England and Wales.

In addition, the IPCC in the Wales and
South West region has continued

to work closely with police forces.
Commissioners and staff hold regular
meetings to inform forces about

IPCC processes, to share best practice
and to monitor the implementation
of any learning identified through
investigations and appeals.

Welsh language scheme

The Wales and South West office
deals with complaints made against
ten police forces including the four
Welsh forces: South Wales, North
Wales, Gwent and Dyfed Powys. The
populations of these geographical
areas include members of the public
for whom the preferred language

is Welsh.The IPCC recognises that
members of the public can express
their views and needs better in their
preferred language, and is committed
to complying with its statutory
responsibility to provide an equal
standard of service in Welsh as it does
in English.

Mr Davies was the guest speaker at
the South East Wales Race Equality
Council’s AGM in October and at a
North Wales Race Equality Council
event in November 2006.

The IPCC has been working this
year to develop a voluntary Welsh
language scheme; however, it was
advised on 6 March 2007 that it was
to be officially named by the Welsh
Assembly as a public body and, as
such, that it must comply with the
Welsh Language Act 1993 and must
consequently produce a Welsh
language scheme.

The scheme, which will be published
shortly, outlines the areas in which
the IPCC will actively ensure that
Welsh and English are treated on

an equal basis. These include all
means of communication — spoken,
written and electronic —in a range
of settings, including operations,
recruitment, advertising, signage and
corporate identity.
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Performance Data

Handling referrals and
investigating the most
serious complaints

The number of matters referred to
the IPCC last year for a decision on
the mode of investigation increased
compared to the previous year,
continuing the steady rise since our
first year of operation in 2004/05 (see
Figure 1). The total number of requests
received in 2006/07 was 2,049 —a

21 per cent increase on the number
received in 2005/06. Of the referrals
received this year, 13 came from

SOCA and 33 from HMRC, with the
remainder coming from police forces.

It is important that those individuals
and organisations affected by matters
referred to us know how those
matters will be investigated as quickly
as possible. The IPCC had a target to
communicate decisions on modes

of investigation within two working
days of the matter being referred in
80 per cent of cases. Against a context
of receiving a growing number of
referrals, we did not achieve this last
year, but we did show considerable
improvement on the previous year

by communicating 67 per cent of
decisions within two working days,
compared to 45 per cent in 2005/06.

Figure 1: Number of referrals received by the IPCC
between 2004/05 and 2006/07
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Of the referrals received this year,
the IPCC decided to independently
investigate 64 matters and managed
the investigation of another 176.

We began more independent
investigations than we had during

Number of independent investigations

Number of managed investigations

9780102945560_Text / Sig: 19/ Plate B

the previous year (52 independent
investigations were commenced in
2005/06 — see Figure 2) but slightly
fewer managed investigations (188
were commenced in 2005/06 — see
Figure 3).

Figure 2: Number of independent investigations started and

completed by the IPCC between 2004/05 and 2006/07
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Figure 3: Number of managed investigations started and

completed by the IPCC between 2004/05 and 2006/07
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The large number of new
investigations started by the IPCC
over the past two years has had an
impact on our ability to complete
investigations in a timely manner. Our
target to complete investigations in
less than an average of 157 working
days was missed on independent
investigations: the average rose to

183 working days for all independent
investigations completed since
commencing operations. However, we
were almost on target for managed
investigations, which have been
completed in an average of 158
working days. This performance needs
to be seen in the context of rising
numbers of new investigations started,
the fact that we are completing fewer
investigations than we have started
ourselves, and that we are undertaking
longer, more complex investigations.

The IPCC had the opportunity to
undertake more detailed capacity
modelling in late 2006/07, to help

us to better manage performance
and to plan for the future. The
modelling determined that the IPCC
has the capacity to undertake about
50 independent and 120 managed
investigations in any one year

- significantly fewer than the number
we have been trying to maintain

over the past two years. Continuing
to embark on more investigations
than we are capable of handling is
not sustainable; we will therefore

be adjusting the number of new
investigations started in any one year
in line with our modelled capacity and
continue to focus our investigations
on the most serious complaints

and misconduct issues. We will also
concentrate on closing existing
investigations to reduce the time
taken to complete them and to ensure
that those affected receive answers

in a more timely manner.
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Handling appeals from
complainants

The complaints system allows
complainants to appeal to the

IPCC against the non-recording of

a complaint, the local resolution
process followed, or the outcome of
an investigation conducted locally
by the police or supervised by the
IPCC.This is a new right that was
given to complainants when the
new system was introduced in April
2004, and the number of appeals
has risen rapidly since then. There
was another significant increase last
year, with 3,347 appeals received. This
represented a 36 per cent increase on
the previous year (see Figure 4).

The IPCC has undertaken to alert
the relevant force on receipt of an
appeal within one working day in

80 per cent of cases. During 2006/07,
we managed to exceed this target,
informing forces within one working
day in 87 per cent of cases. This was
up from 81 per cent the previous
year and is very important in order
for forces to send the background
papers to the IPCC promptly and for
the appeal to be considered without
undue delay.
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Figure 4: Number of appeals received by the IPCC between

2004/05 and 2006/07
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The IPCC set itself a very ambitious
target to complete 8o per cent of
appeals within 20 working days last
year, but only completed 20 per cent
within this time period. A significant
backlog of appeals developed,

and this had a detrimental impact
on performance. Three factors in
particular led to this backlog: the
increase in the number of appeals
being received; the complexity of
many appeals; and delays in the
supply of background papers to

the appeals by the police. While
overall performance this year was
an improvement on the previous
year, it is still well below target and
significant further improvement is
required in the year to come.

Our own better handling of appeals
will be key to this improvement. We
have already significantly reduced
the backlog (and in some regions we
have eliminated it), and will begin to
take a corporate approach, matching
capacity to demand across regions
so that there is minimal carry-over

3,347

2,457

2005/06 2006/07

Year

of appeals month by month. We

have also set staged improvement
targets across the year (backed up by
improvement plans), to ensure that
by the end of the fourth quarter of
2007/08 we will be hitting the 8o per
cent target for the number of appeals
completed within 20 working days.

This improvement in performance
will also come from working with the
police to improve their timeliness in
supplying background papers. Last
year, forces supplied background
papers in an average of 18 working
days, compared with a target of ten
working days. A simplified process for
delivering this information has been
agreed with forces.
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Ensuring that
complainants can
complain directly to
the IPCC

In April 2004, the IPCC launched

its Telephone Complaints Centre

(TCC) to enable the public to lodge
complaints directly, or to seek advice
on complaining. The popularity of the
new service is easily demonstrated

by the rise in the amount of business
that is received: calls to the centre have
risen from 800 per month in the first
six months of operation to 1,800 per
month during 2006/07.In 2006/07,
over 10,000 matters were raised with
the TCC - a third more than were
raised the previous year. Over half of
these were forwarded to the police
for recording as a complaint — 5o per
cent more than were forwarded in the
previous year (see Figure 5).

The volume of people contacting the
new centre has had an impact on its
ability to cope. Although the centre’s
performance is still below target levels,
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it has dramatically improved on the
previous year.In 2006/07, the centre
responded to complainants within two
working days in 52 per cent of cases
—up from 29 per cent the previous year.
It assessed, gained consent for and
forwarded complaints to the relevant
force within two working days in 53 per
cent of cases —up from 29 per cent the
previous year.

The IPCC is committed to improving the
response times of the TCC,and we are
undertaking a number of improvement
initiatives with this in mind. We aim to
provide clearer information and help

to reduce the volume of follow-up
enquiries by producing a frequently
asked questions’ leaflet and revised
corporate literature on making a
complaint to the IPCC. Additionally,

we are now forwarding the majority

of complaints to the relevant forces
electronically. This has reduced the time
taken for forces to receive complaints,
and ensures secure delivery. Recent
statistics show further improvement
on last year’s performance towards

the target of 8o per cent of direct

Figure 5: Number of direct complaints received
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complaints responded to within two
working days. We will be monitoring
the situation closely to ensure that
recent excellent performance can

be maintained throughout the
coming year.

Completing
outstanding cases
from the old
complaints system

In April 2004, the IPCC inherited the
responsibility for resolving complaints
that had been carried over from the
previous police complaints system.
The IPCC took over 5,217 cases,
including some that were already in
progress with our predecessor —the
Police Complaints Authority —on

1 April 2004, and others that were
received in our first three years of
operation. In the last year we have
received 69 new cases, but just 87
remain to be completed in total.In
addition to these 87, it is estimated
that just over 30 additional cases are
still to be received from forces.

The thousands of legacy cases
completed by the IPCC over the
past three years represent a great
achievement for the IPCC and the
complaints system in general. The
resources needed to resolve these
cases are now free to concentrate
on improving our performance in
handling appeals.

Staff and support
services

As a complaint-handling body,

the IPCC takes very seriously those
complaints that are lodged by
members of the public against our
staff for conduct-related issues. The
number of complaints of this type
increased significantly to 220 in
2006/07—a jump of 150 per cent. The
proportion of these complaints that
were upheld (19 in total) remained
steady at below 10 per cent. Of the
complaints received, 8o per cent
were provided with a substantive
response within ten working days (the
target was 9o per cent). This was an
improvement on the previous year,
when the rate was 73 per cent.

Since 1January 2005, members of
the public have been able to request
information from the IPCC under
the Freedom of Information Act. Last
year we received 224 such requests,
and in 82 per cent of cases we met
the statutory target of providing a
response within 20 working days.

The IPCC continues to experience lower
rates of staff turnover and sickness
compared with public sector averages.
Staff turnover was 9 per cent in
2006/07, having decreased from 11.8 per
cent the previous year and comparing
favourably with the public sector
average of 13.3 per cent. Staff sickness
has increased to 2.9 per cent in 2006/07,
but still compares favourably with a
public sector average of 4.3 per cent.

The IPCC’s outturn rose from just
under £31 million in 2005/06 to just
over £34 million last year, as we took
on additional responsibilities for
SOCA and HMRC. This represents a
small surplus. Further information is
contained in Chapter g of this report.
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e S2jod 3jqeu3 2200 e police complaints system will lead the IPCC.

to greater trust in the police service
as a whole, and that this in turn will
contribute to increasing the overall

effectiveness of the police service.

The level of public trust in a police
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The IPCC has developed four aims,

to be delivered by 2010/11. Each year,
our business plan sets out the key
developments that we will be working
towards over the next year under each
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10 W1sAs aY1 Ul 9U3pILU0D d1|gnd 3sE31UI 0] SISIX JDd] YL force clearly has an impact on its of the four aims, as well as the key
capacity to carry out its core function targets that we will be monitoring.
asodind uno of tackling crime and disorder: the

This process will improve our own
performance — as well as that of the
complaints system as a whole - to
ensure that we achieve our four aims
and meet our overall purpose.

greater the public confidence, the
more likely it is that individuals will
report crime and come forward with
information about criminal activity.
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This is a list of the current
responsibilities of the IPCC
Commissioners. Some of these duties
have been taken on since the end of
March 2007, and this list is current at
the date of publication.

Commissioners

Nick Hardwick is the Chair of the IPCC.
Based at the national office in London,
he is accountable to the Home
Secretary for the performance of the
IPCC. He chairs the IPCC Diversity
Committee.

Lead organisational contacts: Home
Office, Home Secretary, ACPO, police
staff associations, HMIC (with Rebecca
Marsh), IPCC Advisory Board and
police staff (with John Wadham).

Policy lead roles: counter-terrorism
and diversity.

John Wadham is the Deputy Chair

of the IPCC and is based at the
national office in London. He chairs
the IPCC Casework and Investigations
Committee.

Lead organisational contacts: coroners,
the Crown Prosecution Service,
Custody Ombudsman, Deaths In
Custody Forum, the INQUEST charity,
international and overseas police
oversight bodies, the Legal Services
Commission, national Muslim
organisations (with Mehmuda Mian
Pritchard), the Police Action Lawyers
Group, the Metropolitan Police Service
(with Deborah Glass), the Information
Commissioner’s Office and police staff.

Policy lead roles: corruption, discipline
(including residual issues from the
Taylor Review) (with Amerdeep Somal),
IPCC negotiations in preparation for
new business with the Immigration
and Nationality Directorate (with
Nicholas Long and lan Bynoe) and stop
and search (with Mike Franklin).

lan Bynoe is a Commissioner for
the South West and chairs the IPCC
Guardianship Committee.

Police force responsibilities: Dorset,
Wiltshire, and Devon and Cornwall.

Policy lead roles: learning the lessons
(with John Crawley), mental health,
and health and social services (with
John Crawley).

John Crawley is a Commissioner for
the Central and Eastern region.

Police force responsibilities:
Staffordshire, Warwickshire, West
Mercia and West Midlands.

Lead organisational contacts: the
Healthcare Commission and other
health agencies in England, and police
authorities and the Association of Police
Authorities (with Rebecca Marsh).

Policy lead roles: mental health,
learning the lessons (with lan Bynoe),
and health and social services (with
lan Bynoe).

Tom Davies is a Commissioner for
Wales.

Police force responsibilities: Dyfed-
Powys, Gwent, North Wales, South
Wales and British Transport Police.
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Lead organisational contacts: Welsh
Assembly Government and health
agencies in Wales.

Policy lead roles: inspection of IPCC,
police negotiators (with Mike Franklin)
and Welsh issues.

Mike Franklin is a Commissioner for
the North region.

Police force responsibilities: Cheshire,
Lancashire, Merseyside and the Port
of Liverpool.

Policy lead roles: gypsies and
travellers, police negotiators (with
Tom Davies), and stop and search
(with John Wadham).

Gary Garland is a Commissioner for
the North region.

Police force responsibilities: Cleveland,
Durham and Northumbria. (Also
HMRC.)

Policy lead role: HMRC.

Deborah Glass is a Commissioner for
the London and South East region.

Police force responsibilities: City of
London, Thames Valley, Metropolitan
Police Service (north east), Surrey and
Hertfordshire.

Lead organisational contacts:
Metropolitan Police Service (with
John Wadham) and ACPO (Conflict
Management Committee).

Policy lead role: firearms and less
lethal weapons.

Len Jackson is a Commissioner for the
Central and Eastern region.

Police force responsibilities:
Cambridgeshire, Lincolnshire, Norfolk,
Nottinghamshire and Suffolk.

Policy lead role: dogs.
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Nicholas Long is a Commissioner for
the North region.

Police force responsibilities:
Humberside, North Yorkshire, South
Yorkshire, West Yorkshire.

Lead organisational contact: British
and Irish Ombudsman Association.

Policy lead roles: custody (including
ACPO custody forum), IPCC
preparations with the Immigration
and Nationality Directorate (with

lan Bynoe and John Wadham), public
order and the single non-emergency
number.

Laurence Lustgarten is a
Commissioner for the London and
South East region.

No allocated responsibilities during
the period.

Naseem Malik is a Commissioner for
the North region.

Police force responsibilities: Greater
Manchester and Cumbria.

Policy lead roles: domestic violence,
and women and gender issues.

Rebecca Marsh is a Commissioner for
the Wales and South West region.

Police force responsibilities: Avon and
Somerset, Gloucestershire and the
Civil Nuclear Constabulary.

Lead organisational contacts:
Association of Police Authorities
(with John Crawley), and HMIC
(with Nick Hardwick).

Policy lead roles: IPCC inspection
powers, local resolution, and police
authorities (with John Crawley).

Mehmuda Mian Pritchard is a
Commissioner for the London and
South East region.
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Police force responsibilities:
the Metropolitan Police Service
(South East).

Lead organisational contacts: national
Muslim organisations (with John
Wadham).

Policy lead role: forensic medical
examiners (with Nicola Williams).

David Petch is a Commissioner for the
London and South East region.

Police force responsibilities:
Bedfordshire, Essex and the
Metropolitan Police Service
(north west). (Also SOCA.)

Lead organisational contact: SOCA.
Policy lead role: road traffic incidents.

Amerdeep Somal is a Commissioner
for the Central and Eastern region.

Police force responsibilities:
Derbyshire, Leicestershire and
Northamptonshire.

Lead organisational contact:
Commission for Racial Equality
(including residual issues from the
Morris Inquiry).

Policy lead role: discipline (including
residual issues from the Taylor Review)
(with John Wadham).

Nicola Williams is a Commissioner for
the London and South East region.

Police force responsibilities: Kent,
Sussex, Metropolitan Police Service
(south west and central, including
Heathrow) and Ministry of Defence.

Lead organisational contact: forensic
medical examiners (with Mehmuda
Mian Pritchard).

Policy lead role: guidelines on
investigating allegations of racially
discriminatory behaviour.

Chief Executive,
Directors and Regional
Directors

Chief Executive: Susan Atkins
(until 30 June 2006)
Jane Furniss (from 4 December 2006)

Director of Corporate Services:
Barry Simpson (Acting Chief Executive
from 1July to 3 December 2006)

Acting Director of Corporate Services:
lan Millar (until January 2007)

Acting Director of Operations:
Peter Goode

Director of Policy and Research:
Jennifer Douglas-Todd (until
December 2006) and Philip Geering
(Acting from January 2007)

Director of Legal Services: John Tate

Director of Communications:
Sarah Clifford (until November 2006)

Acting Director of Communications:
Alex Louis (from November 2006)

Regional Director for the Central and
Eastern region: Derek Bradon

Regional Director for the North
region: David Knight

Regional Director for the London and
South East region: Judy Clements

Regional Director for the Wales and
South West region: Jane Farleigh

For detailed biographies of
Commissioners, the Chief Executive
and Directors, visit the IPCC website
(www.ipcc.gov.uk).
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Foreword to the
accounts

These accounts have been prepared
by the IPCC in accordance with

the requirements of the Financial
Reporting Manual (FReM) produced
by the Treasury and the Accounts
Direction given by the Secretary of
State. They have been prepared with
the consent of the Treasury and in
accordance with paragraph 17(1) of
Schedule 2 to the Police Reform Act
2002.

The nature of the IPCC’s business and
its aims, objectives and activities
The purpose of the IPCC is to ensure
that suitable arrangements are in
place for dealing with complaints or
allegations of misconduct against
anyone serving with the police in
England or Wales. The IPCC seeks

to increase public confidence by
demonstrating the independence,
accountability and integrity of

the complaints system, and so
contributing to the effectiveness of
the police service as a whole. Further
details of the IPCC's aims, objectives
and activities can be found in
Chapter 7 of this report.

History

The IPCC was created by the Police
Reform Act 2002 and was established
as an executive non-departmental
public body (NDPB) on 1 April 2003.
The organisation became operational
on 1April 2004.The sponsoring
department for the IPCC is the Home
Office and the sponsoring unit is the
Policing Powers and Protection Unit.

The IPCC’'s Commissioners are
appointed by the Home Secretary and
are responsible for the governance

of the IPCC as a whole, guardianship
of the complaints system, and final
determination of individual cases. The
Commissioners are independent of
the police, interest groups, political
parties and Government.

The IPCC's executive functions are led
by a Chief Executive supported by a
senior management team based in
locations across England and Wales.
The Chief Executive is accountable

to the Commissioners, and has been
appointed as Accounting Officer

for the IPCC by the Departmental
Accounting Officer.

Commissioners

Commissioners are appointed
under Schedule 2 (Section 9) of
the Police Reform Act 2002, for a
term not exceeding five years.The
Commissioners who served during
2006/07 were as follows:

SMO||04 Se 21am LO/900T

3ulINp PaAIas OYM SI3UOISSIWWIOD
3y 'sieak aAy Su1padIX3 J0U WU}
e 10} ‘T00T 10V WI0J3Y 31|10d 9y}
40 (6 UOI13D3S) T 3INPaYDS Japun
pajulodde aie siauoISSIWWOD
sIauolssIWWo)

192UJ0 3ulunoddy

lejuawpiedaqd ay3i Aq DDd| 2y3 1o}
19010 8uiunoddy se pajuiodde
U229 Sey pue ‘siauolissiwwo)) 3y} 01
9|ge1unodde S| 9AIINDXT Ja1yD ay L
"S9|eA\ pUe pue|3u3 SS04de SUOIIeDO|
Ul paseq weal Juawadeuew Jojuas

e Aq payioddns aAi13n2ax3 Jaiyd e Aq
P3| 1B SUOIIDUNS SAIINIAXD S )Dd| YL

"JUaWUIaA0D pue sal1led

|ed1nijod ‘sdnoid 3saiaiul ‘921j0d ay3

JO JUapuadapul aJe SI2UOISSIWIO)D
9y 'Sased [enplAIpUl JO UOITBUIWIISP
|eul pue ‘waisAs syulejdwod ayy Jo
diysueipiend ‘9joym e se JDd| ay1 Jo
2dUeUIaA0S 3y3 J0J 3|gisuodsal ale
pue A1e121335 aWoH 3yl Aq pajulodde
2JE SJ3UOISSIWWOD) S JDd| YL

"1IUMN U0I123101d pue s1amod uidijod
ay1 sl 1un ulosuods ay3 pue 2UJ0O
9WOH 3y1 sI DDd| 2y Jo) Juawpiedap
3unosuods ay| ‘Yooz judy L uo
|euoiiesado awedaq uoljesiuedio ay |
‘€00z |udy L uo (94aN) Apoq d1ignd
[eruawWiedap-uou aAIINIAXa Ue se
Pays!|qe1sa Sem pue z00T 10 W0y
21|04 ay3 Aq pareald sem Jdd| 9yl
K103siH

‘1odai siyy jo L 1ardeyd

Ul pUNOJ} 3q UBD S3I}IAIIDE pue
$9A1193[q0 ‘swie 5, 7Dd| Y3 JO S|1e1ap
1ayin4 'ajoyMm e se 91A43s 3d1jod ay1
10 SSQUDAIIRYD aY3 01 Su1IngliIuod
0s pue ‘WaisAs syurejdwod ay3

Jo A11331u1 pue Ay1jigeaunodde
‘9duapuadapul ay3 duijesisuowap
Aq 9ouapyuod d1ignd asealoul 01
S$}935 DDd| YL 'S9|eA) 10 pue|Sug

u1 321j0d ay1 yum 3uinias auokue
1suiede 1dNpuUoISIW JO suoljeda||e

1o syutejdwod yum uijeap Joy deid
ul ale sjuswia8uelie 3|qelns 1eyl
2INsuU? 01 s1 DDd| ay3 4o asodind ay |
S31}IAI}OR pue saAI[qo ‘swie s}
pue ssauisng s,))d| 3y} JO ainjeu ayl

7007
10V WJ0Jay 921104 Y3 01 T 3|Npayds
Jo (1)1 ydei3esed yym aduepiodde

ul pue Ainseal] ay3 JO JUISUOD Y3}
yum pasedaid uaaqg aney Aay -21e15
4o A1e3a123s ay3 Ag uanid uoidaliqg
S1UNOJ2Y 3y pue Ainseal] ay1 Aq
pasnpold (Way4) [enueyy 3uipioday
[eldUBUI 9Y3 JO syuawalinbal aya
Y1IM 9doUeplodde Ul D4l 2yl Aq
pasedaid uaaqg aney syunodde asay |

Sjunoooe
24l O] pJOM9I0

ot

s3unodJe JO 1U_wWalels

g oe|d / ¥z BIS /1xa1 09557620108.6



Ly L0/9002 s3un02dy Jo Juawajlels pue yoday |enuuy

‘awayds Ayijenba

19puagd e padojansp pue awayds
Ayjenba A1jigesip e pajuswadwi
aney am Jeak 1sed ay3 3uling
"SpunoJ3yoeq JuaJayip Yyim pue ‘sqol
1U2Ja1p Sulop ‘suoidal JUIBLIP Ul
paseq JJe1s woij 3dualiadxa punod
-3y3-uo pue s1y3isul Jo Jyauaq

3Y3 SJa4J0 pue ‘sandalqo A1isianip
1no Jo A1aniap ayy 4oy 3|qisuodsal

S 99111WWO0)) AYISIaAI 9y L

ey Dd|
2y Aq pa| sI pue ‘uonesiuedio ay3
SSOJDE WOJ) JJB1S pue SI2UOISSILUWOD)
Jodn apew s| 1eyl 99331WWo)
AYISIAIQ B paWI0) ABY A "SaN|eA
9102 5)Dd| 2Y3 JO U0 sI AYSIaAIQ

‘uoljelaul Ag pusie

[|e S321AI9S 91e10dio)) Jo J012ai1d 2Y)
pue 9A11NJaXT JaIyD ay3 ‘siolipne
|eUI91UI ‘92440 HPNY [BUOIEN Y}
WoJ) saAIReIURSIdRY “(Yd3ad pired
pue s3IABJ WO]) SI2UOISSIWWOD) OM)
se ||am se — (sajuedwo) Jo Jel3si3ay
pue 3snoH satuedw o)) JO AIINIAXT
$21YyD Aluawiioy) usp|oH uyor pue dteyd
3Y3 SBM OYM ‘(3SNJL SSauUIND ay3 JO
3A13N23XT Ja1YyD dnoun) moQg uowis —
slaqWiaw Juapuadapul om) pasiidwod
99111WWO0) 1pny a3yl Looz yoiew LE
3uipua Jeak |epueuy ayy duling

‘uonesiuedio ayy

1suiede sjulejdwod pue Ayljigeiunodde
‘QuawWadeurw sl ‘9dUeUIaA03
31eJ0d10d ‘@dueUl 10} S3SSID0.1d

pue swa1sAs s JDd| 2y Su1aasiano
10J 9|qisuodsal os|e si 3| "saAda(qo
$,0Dd| 2y1 Jo AJaalap ay3 uidiapun
183 SW1SAS |0J1U0D |BUIIUI Y] JO
uolyelsado A3y pue Aoenbape
aY1 2UIWI13p 01 SI 991U WW0D
11pNY 3Y1 JO 9|04 3y "UOISSILUILIOD)
ay1 01 spodal 99131WIWIoD) 1PNy YL

Vv 9leld / G2 :BIS / Xa 1 095562010826

'S91}IAI}Oe
uol3dNpalJ St pue uolediiw Jo

$3119s e AgQ padeuew AjaAi1oe uayy

pUE ‘p3sSIsSse pue payljuapl aJe sysi
JuedYIu8IS "UOISSIWWOD) Y3 01 pue
99111WIW0D 1PNy 3y 01 suodal yorym
DDd| Y3 UIY1IM PIppagquus us3q

sey yJomaulel) Juswadeuew Jsi Y

EBEIRTEY
1O SWI9Y Je3|D YUM $933311Wwod Jo dn
apew si 1eyl 24n10n.3s 31eJodiod e sey
DDdI YL s9A1323[qo s Jo Aianiap ayy
2JNSU 01 $324N0S3J JO UOIILIO|[e Y]
3uiuiwiaap pue A3a1e43s Suluyap

104 3|gisuodsal S| 3| "9durUIIA0S
31e10dJ0d Jo piepuels y3iy e

3ulINsu2 01 PaIIIWILIOD SI DDd| YL

"HE9 ALDM ‘UOpuO]

‘ulog|oH Y3iH 06 1e A1e12103S DD d|
9y} woiy UM Ul paule1qo g Aew
pue 3|gejieAe A]pi|gnd aJe s1saJa3ul
1930 10 103dsal ul saInsodsIp
,SI2UOISSILUIWIOD) 3y "'SMO|[04 1By}
U01123s 10day uoieIaUNWY Y3

Ul puNO} 3q UBD UOj}eJaUNUI
,SI2UO0ISSIWWO)) JO s|1e1a

SWel|[IA\ B|OdIN

[ewos daapiawy

Y33ed pineq

pleydilid ueiyy epnwiyany
Ysiew e313gy

Nlew waaseN
uaue3d1sn aduaine]
3uo sejoydiN

uoSyder ua

sse|n yelogag

puejien Aien

uipjueld MW

SalARQ WO

A3|meld uyor

J0UAg ue|

(neyd Ayndaq) weypepn uyor
(1reyD) yo1mpaeH yIN

Nick Hardwick (Chair)
John Wadham (Deputy Chair)
lan Bynoe

John Crawley

Tom Davies

Mike Franklin

Gary Garland

Deborah Glass

Len Jackson

Nicholas Long

Laurence Lustgarten
Naseem Malik

Rebecca Marsh
Mehmuda Mian Pritchard
David Petch

Amerdeep Somal

Nicola Williams

Details of Commissioners’
remuneration can be found in

the Remuneration Report section
that follows. The Commissioners’
disclosures in respect of other
interests are publicly available and
may be obtained in writing from the
IPCC Secretary at 9o High Holborn,
London, WC1V 6BH.

The IPCC is committed to ensuring

a high standard of corporate
governance. It is responsible for
defining strategy and determining
the allocation of resources to ensure
the delivery of its objectives. The IPCC
has a corporate structure that is made
up of committees with clear terms of
reference.

A risk management framework has
been embedded within the IPCC,
which reports to the Audit Committee
and to the Commission. Significant
risks are identified and assessed, and
then actively managed by a series

of mitigation and risk reduction
activities.
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The Audit Committee reports to the
Commission. The role of the Audit
Committee is to determine the
adequacy and effective operation

of the internal control systems that
underpin the delivery of the IPCC’s
objectives. It is also responsible for
overseeing the IPCC’s systems and
processes for finance, corporate
governance, risk management,
accountability and complaints against
the organisation.

During the financial year ending

31 March 2007, the Audit Committee
comprised two independent members
—Simon Dow (Group Chief Executive
of the Guinness Trust), who was the
Chair,and John Holden (formerly Chief
Executive of Companies House and
Registrar of Companies) —as well as
two Commissioners (Tom Davies and
David Petch). Representatives from
the National Audit Office, internal
auditors, the Chief Executive and

the Director of Corporate Services all
attend by invitation.

Diversity is one of the IPCC’s core
values. We have formed a Diversity
Committee that is made up of
Commissioners and staff from across
the organisation, and is led by the
IPCC Chair.

The Diversity Committee is
responsible for the delivery of our
diversity objectives, and offers the
benefit of insights and on-the-
ground experience from staff based
in different regions, doing different
jobs, and with different backgrounds.
During the past year we have
implemented a disability equality
scheme and developed a gender
equality scheme.

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2006/07
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As part of our commitment to
diversity, we have put in place policies
to create an environment in which all
staff can perform to the best of their
ability and contribute to their own
and the organisation’s success.

The IPCC gives full and fair
consideration to applications for
employment from people with
disabilities, where the nature of the
employment makes this appropriate.
The IPCC is similarly committed to
enabling any members of staff who
may become disabled to continue
their employment.

During the past year we have
monitored recruitment, training, job
satisfaction and staff turnover, and
have provided regular reports on all of
these issues to senior managers and
Commissioners.

The IPCC involves staff in decisions
about health, safety and welfare.
The Public and Commercial Services
Union negotiates on behalf of staff,
and in addition a Staff Council
consisting of both staff and trade
union representatives is in place for
the purposes of communication and
consultation.

The IPCC recognises and accepts

its legal responsibilities in relation

to the health, safety and welfare of

its employees and all people on its
premises. We have a Health and Safety
Committee to deal with these issues,
chaired by a regional director. The
IPCC complies with the Health and
Safety at Work Act 1974 and all other
legislation as appropriate.

We are fully committed to
contributing to achievement of

government environmental targets.
The principal elements of our policy
are to reduce carbon emissions in our
vehicles and to develop a programme
for sustainable procurement in line
with Home Office best practice.

The IPCC abides by the Department of
Trade and Industry’s Better Payment
Practice Code and in particular

aims to pay undisputed invoices in
accordance with contract terms.
During the year to 31 March 2007,

9o per cent of invoices were paid in
accordance with contract terms (the
figure was 89 per cent in 2005/06).
No interest was paid in respect of the
Late Payment of Commercial Debts
(Interest) Act 1998.

The IPCC research programme
supports the long-term aims of the
organisation and helps to make its
work evidence-informed. During the
past year, the IPCC has undertaken
research into the local resolution of
complaints; mental health and police
custody; and ‘near-miss’incidents in
police custody. The reports resulting
from this research are expected to be
published during 2007.

No donations to charity were made
by the IPCC during the year. But
occasionally Commissioners or
staff receive gifts as a result of their
normal duties; in these circumstances,
the gifts or an equivalent value

are donated to either Oxfam or
Macmillan Cancer Support. Details
are recorded in a register which

is available to the public and may
be obtained in writing from the
Commission Secretary at 9o High
Holborn, London, WC1V 6BH.
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Going concern

Grant in aid for the IPCC for 2007/08
has already been included in our
sponsoring department’s estimate
approved by Parliament, and there

is no reason to believe that the
department’s future sponsorship and
future parliamentary approval will
not be forthcoming. It has accordingly
been considered appropriate to
adopt a going-concern basis for

the preparation of these financial
statements.

Post-balance sheet events

No post-balance sheet events have
been noted as significant in terms of
their impact on operational activities,
or as having a significant impact

on the balances contained in the
accounts.

Auditors

Arrangements for external audit are
provided under paragraph 17(1) of
Schedule 2 to the Police Reform Act
2002, which requires the Comptroller
and Auditor General to examine,
certify and report on the statement
of accounts, and to lay copies of it
(together with his report) before
each House of Parliament. The fees
for these services for 2006/07 are
estimated at £38,000 (the figure
was £38,000 in 2005/06 as well).
The auditors have received no
remuneration for non-audit work.

The Home Office Audit and Assurance
Unit provided the internal audit
services during 2006/07. The firm
Bentley Jennison has been appointed
as internal auditor from 1 April 2007,
in agreement with the sponsor unit.

The Accounting Officer has taken

all steps to ensure that she is aware
of any relevant audit information,
and to ensure that the IPCC auditors
are also aware of that information.
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As far as the Accounting Officer is
aware, there is no relevant internal
audit information of which the IPCC
auditors are unaware.

Management
commentary

Financial results

The activities of the IPCC are funded
mainly by grant in aid from the Home
Office.In 2006/07,the IPCC had a
resource allocation from the Home
Office of £31.273 million. The IPCC also
received £3.325 million of other income,
which included funding for HM
Revenue and Customs investigations
as provided for under Section 28 of
the Commissioners for Revenue and
Customs Act 2005, and funding for
preliminary work to establish an
infrastructure for investigating
referrals of complaints for the Border
and Immigration Agency.

During the year, IPCC resource
expenditure was £34.533 million,
resulting in a £0.065 million
underspend. The Home Office was
kept informed of our expenditure at
all times.

The IPCC also received from the Home
Office a capital budget allocation of
£2.1 million. Actual capital expenditure
in the year was £1.846 million in
respect of IT hardware, IT software
and leasehold property.

Business achievements for the year
The main business achievements for
the year have been in:

¢ establishing a national Learning
the Lesson Committee to develop
a system for the police to learn
lessons from our investigations;

¢ working with communities across
England and Wales to address
issues relating to awareness and

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2006/07
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understanding of the complaints
system;

establishing a programme to
improve understanding of the local
resolution process among both
complainants and police officers;
and

initiating a performance framework
for the police complaints system.

Further information is contained
elsewhere in this report.

The IPCC has developed four aims,

to be delivered by 2010/11. Each year,
our business plan sets out the key
developments that we will be working
towards over the next year under each
of the four aims. Our key developments
for next year include, for example:

undertaking a review of the
complaints systems as a whole;

improving the way lessons are
learnt from complaints by both
police and the IPCC;

developing a performance
framework for the police
complaints system;

implementing a balanced
scorecard for the work of the IPCC;

improving our casework and
investigation capability; and

implementing robust quality
assurance and inspection
mechanisms.

Further information is contained
elsewhere in this report and in the
IPCC Corporate Plan 2007/08-2010/11
available on our website.

We also anticipate that the Secretary
of State will make regulations under
section 41 of the Police and Justice
Bill 2006 to provide the IPCC with
powers to investigate complaints

in respect of certain functions

undertaken by officials of the Border
and Immigration Agency.

Jane Furniss
Chief Executive, IPCC
4 July 2007

Remuneration report

The IPCC aims to ensure that the
remuneration packages offered are
competitive and designed to attract,
retain and motivate senior executives
and other employees. In setting
remuneration, the IPCC works within
government policy guidelines for
public sector pay.

The IPCC Chair is appointed by

the Crown.The Commissioners

and the first Chief Executive were
appointments by the Secretary of
State. Subsequent Chief Executives
are appointed by the Commission,
subject to approval by the Secretary
of State. All of these appointments
are made in accordance with the code
of practice for public appointments
issued by the Commissioner for Public
Appointments.

The Secretary of State reviews

the Chair's and Commissioners’
salaries annually. The Commission
has established a Remuneration
Committee that is responsible

for considering —and making
recommendations to the Secretary
of State on —the base salary and
benefits of the Chief Executive.
The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for determining
the specific remuneration and
other employment benefits of the
other directors. The membership
of the Remuneration Committee
comprises the IPCC Deputy Chair,
four Commissioners, the IPCC Chief
Executive and the IPCC Director of
Corporate Services.
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Subject to approval by the

Home Office of the IPCC’s overall
remuneration strategy, the
Commission has delegated to

the senior executive team the
determination of the remuneration
packages and other employment
benefits of all other IPCC employees.

The IPCC has established a job grading
structure with salary scales for each
grade.Job evaluation is undertaken

to ensure that different roles within
the IPCC are fairly positioned in the
job grading structure, and annual
appraisals are conducted with each
employee to determine performance
and areas where additional training

is required. The base salary for each
employee is determined by taking into
account individual performance and
the relevant salary scales for the job.

The IPCC Chairis a Crown
appointment for a period of five years,
which is terminable by Her Majesty
with no notice period. Commissioners
are usually appointed for a fixed
period of five years.

The Secretary of State appointed
the IPCC’s first Chief Executive for

a fixed period of five years, and this
contract was renewable subject to
agreement. Early termination, other
than for misconduct, would have
resulted in the individual receiving
compensation as set out in the Civil
Service Compensation Scheme.

The first Chief Executive, Dr Susan
Atkins, left the IPCC on 30 June 2006.
The Commission then appointed
Barry Simpson (Director of Corporate
Services) as the Acting Chief Executive
from 1July to 3 December 2006.The
current Chief Executive, Jane Furniss,

9780102945560_Text / Sig: 27 / Plate A

was appointed by the Commission on
4 December 2006.

The Chief Executive appoints directors.
Their contracts have no fixed period
and are terminable on three months’
notice by the IPCC.

The Chair and Commissioners do not
receive a bonus. The Chief Executive
did not receive a bonus for 2006/07
but will be eligible for a bonus in
2007/08, in line with Senior Civil
Service Grade 2 terms and conditions.

The senior executives are also eligible
for performance bonuses and the
Remuneration Committee approves
these. The maximum bonus for senior
executives is currently 20 per cent of
base salary.

The Chair, Commissioners and all staff
are eligible for membership of the
Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme
(PCSPS). Certain IPCC Commissioners
who served as members of the Police
Complaints Authority participate in a
‘broadly by analogy’ pension scheme
as an alternative to membership of
the PCSPS.

The PCSPS is an unfunded multi-
employer defined-benefit scheme, but
the IPCCis unable to identify its share
of the underlying assets and liabilities.
A full actuarial valuation was carried
out as at 31 March 2003: details can

be found in the Cabinet Office Civil
Superannuation Resource Accounts
(at www.civilservice-pensions.gov.uk).

For 2006/07, employers’ contributions
were payable to the PCSPS at one of
four rates in the range 17.1 to 25.5 per
cent (in 2005/06 the range was 16.2
to 24.6 per cent) of pensionable
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pay, based on salary bands.The
scheme’s actuary reviews employer
contributions every four years
following a full scheme valuation.
From 1 April 2007, the salary bands will
be revised but the rates will remain
the same. The contribution rates
reflect benefits as they are accrued,
not when the costs are actually
incurred, and reflect past experience
of the scheme.

Pension benefits are provided
through the Civil Service pension
arrangements. From 1 October 2002,
participants may be in one of three
statutory-based “final salary’ defined
benefit schemes: classic, premium,
and classic plus. The schemes are
unfunded, with the cost of benefits
met by monies voted by Parliament
each year. Pensions payable under
the classic, premium and classic
plus schemes are increased annually
in line with changes in the Retail
Prices Index. New entrants after 1
October 2002 may choose between
membership of the premium scheme
or joining a ‘money purchase’
stakeholder arrangement with a
significant employer contribution

(a partnership pension account).

Employee contributions are set at
the rate of 1.5 per cent of pensionable
earnings for the classic scheme, and
3.5 per cent for the premium and
classic plus schemes. Benefits in the
classic scheme accrue at the rate of
1/80th of pensionable earnings for
each year of service. In addition, a
lump sum equivalent to three years’
pension is payable on retirement.
For the premium scheme, benefits
accrue at the rate of 1/60oth of final
pensionable earnings for each year
of service. Unlike the classic scheme,
there is no automatic lump sum (but

members may give up (commute)
some of their pension to provide a
lump sum). The classic plus scheme is
essentially a variation of the premium
scheme, but with benefits in respect
of service before 1 October 2002
calculated broadly in the same way as
in the classic scheme.

The partnership pension account is

a stakeholder pension arrangement.
The employer makes a basic
contribution of between 3 per cent
and 12.5 per cent of pensionable
salary (depending on the age of the
member) into a stakeholder pension
product chosen by the employee from
a selection of approved products.

The employee does not have to
contribute, but where they do make
contributions, the employer will
match these up to a limit of 3 per cent
of pensionable salary (in addition to
the employer’s basic contribution).
Employers also contribute a further
0.8 per cent of pensionable salary to
cover the cost of centrally provided
risk benefit cover (covering death in
service and ill-health retirement).

Further details of the Civil Service
pension arrangements can be found
online (at
www.civilservice-pensions.gov.uk).

A‘broadly by analogy’ (BBA) pension
arrangement entitles the recipient to
benefits similar to those of the PCSPS
classic scheme described above, and
obliges the IPCC and the member

to make contributions in line with
the PCSPS. The IPCC is responsible
for funding future pension benefits
and retaining pension contributions.
Further details of these pensions

are disclosed in the accounts, which
follow.
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Senior staff disclosures

Details of the remuneration and
pension of the Chief Executive and
Commissioners are provided at pages
54 and 55. The disclosures for Barry
Simpson relate to his total service
from 1 April 2006 to him ceasing to be
the Acting Chief Executive.

Jane Furniss
Accounting Officer, IPCC
4 July 2007

Remuneration and pensions of
the Commissioners and the Chief
Executive

The following tables provide details
of the remuneration and pension
interests of the Commissioners and
the Chief Executive.

Salary

‘Salary’includes gross salary;
performance pay or bonuses;
overtime; reserved rights to London
weighting or London allowances;
recruitment and retention allowances;
private office allowances; and any
other allowance to the extent that it
is subject to UK taxation.

Benefits in kind

No Commissioner received any
benefits provided by the IPCC that
were treated by HMRC as a taxable
emolument.

Cash equivalent transfer values

A cash equivalent transfer value
(CETV) is the actuarially assessed
capitalised value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a
member at a particular point in
time. The benefits valued are the
member’s accrued benefits and
any contingent spouse’s pension
payable from the scheme. A CETV
is a payment made by a pension
scheme or arrangement to secure
pension benefits in another pension

9780102945560_Text / Sig: 28 / Plate A

scheme or arrangement when the
member leaves a scheme and chooses
to transfer the benefits accrued in
their former scheme. The pension
figures shown on page 55 relate to
the benefits that the individual has
accrued as a consequence of their
total membership of the pension
scheme, not just their service in a
senior capacity to which disclosure
applies.The CETV figures, and from
2003/04 the other pension details,
include the value of any pension
benefit in another scheme or
arrangement which the individual
has transferred to the Civil Service
pension arrangements and for which
the CS Vote has received a transfer
payment commensurate with the
additional pension liabilities being
assumed.They also include any
additional pension benefit accrued
to the member as a result of their
purchasing additional years of
pension service in the scheme at
their own cost. CETVs are calculated
within the guidelines and framework
prescribed by the Institute and Faculty
of Actuaries.

Real increase in CETV

This represents the increase in CETV
effectively funded by the employer.
It takes account of the increase in
accrued pension due to inflation and
contributions paid by the employee
(including the value of any benefits
transferred from another pension
scheme or arrangement), and uses
common market valuation factors for
the start and end of the period.

Payments to third parties

The current Chief Executive was
seconded from the Home Office and
the payments made to the Home
Office for her services are shown in
the remuneration report.
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Start date
to end date
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Salary
2006/07
(as defined)

Salary
2005/06
(as defined)

Real increase in
pension and related
lump sum at age 60

14

Bands of £2,500 wns dwn| [IN §'2-0 S/-ol S/-olL Yo/vo/L0 suiel||IA BJODIN
I N ) ) I osuedvae
wns dwn| SZ1-SL pieysilid
Nick Hardwick 03/02/03 105—110 100—105 0-2.5 Nil lump sum snid 9/-S Sl-ol 09-5S Yo/v0/10 ueln epnwiyaw
(Chair)
(uoisuad vgagq)
Jane Furniss 04./12/06 35—40 (115-120 n/a o0—-2.5plus wns dwn| IN SZ1-St  0/-S9 0l-99 o/vo/10 J0UAg ue|
(Chief Executive) annual equivalent) 5—7.5 lump sum i T G el e
Barry Simpson 01/07/06 40—45 90—95 2.5—5 Nil lump sum sn|d 9-Sz S/-ol S/-ol o/v0o/10 sse|D yelogad
(Acting Chief to (1oo—105 annual (as at 03/12/06) e IR )
S 03/12/06 S il wns dwn|IN §=S¢ S/-ol S/-ol vo/vo/10 q519d piAneq
Susan Atkins 01/04/03 35—-40 100-105 0-2.5 plus _
(previous Chief to (1mo—115 annual 0—2.5 lump sum wns dwnj |IN §'2-0 st-oL Sl=oL 2/eN1Y S9INEQ oL
Executive) 30/06/06 equivalent) (as at 30/06/06) wns dwnj [IN $'z—0 0l-S9 Sl-ol £€0/60/S1 ysiew e333gay
John Wadham 30/06/03 75—80 75—80 0-2.5 Nil lump sum wns dwnj [IN §'z—0 0l-S9 0/-59 €0/60/10 3uo7 sejoydIN
(D puy Clrey wns dwn|IN $z-0 S/-ol S/-ol €o/0L/10 JI|eW WiaaseN
Amerdeep Somal 01/09/03 70-75 65-70 10-12.5 Nil lump sum e i e
Gary Garland 01/10/03 70-75 65—70 0-2.5 Nil lump sum snid S'z-o S/-ol S/-ol €0/60/10 uipjueld MW
John Crawley 01/01/04 70-75 65—70 0-2.5 Nil lump sum wns dwnj [IN $z—0 0l-59 S/-ol €o/0L/10 uosyder ua]
Laurence Lustgarten 01/09/03 70-75 65—70 0-2.5 Nil lump sum wns dwnj [IN $'z—0 0/-59 S/-ol €0/60/10 uauedisny aouaine]
Len Jackson 01/10/03 70-75 65—70 0-2.5 Nil lump sum wns dwn|IN $z-0 0/-59 S/-ol o/Lo0/10 As|meld uyor
Mike Franklin 01/09/03 70-75 70-75 0-2.5 plus wns dwn|IN §z—0 0l-59 S/—-ol €o/0L/10 puejien Aien
2 LIRECN] wns dwn|IN Szi-oL  0/-59 Sl-ol €0/60/10 |ewos daspiawy
Naseem Malik 01/10/03 70-75 70-75 0-2.5 Nil lump sum (11eyy fandaq)
Nicholas Long 01/09/03 65-70 65—70 0-2.5 Nil lump sum wns dwnj [IN S'z—0 0g-SL 08-SL €0/90/0¢ weypep uyor
Rebecca Marsh 15/09/03 70-75 65—70 0-2.5 Nil lump sum (90/90/0¢€ 1€ se) (3usjeainba 90/90/0¢ (3A13n29%3
. _ _ _ : wns dwn| Sz-o |lenuue SLL—oLL) 0} 421y snoinaid)
Tom Davies 01/10/03 70-75 70—75 0-2.5 Nil lump sum e o100l ob_ce oeE Ul Uz
David Petch /04/ = = .5—5 Nil |
2 etg o1/04704 70775 79715 2575 Rt ump sum (3uajeainba 90/2L/€0 (3A13nd3ax3
(BBA pension)
(9o/zL/€0 e se) |lenuue SoL—ooLl) 01 J21yD 8udy)
Deborah Glass 01/04/04 70-75 70-75 2.5-5 plus wns dwnj [IN §=S'C 96-06 SY—ot 9o/Lo/Lo uosdwig Aieg
(BBA pension) 10-12.5 lump sum wns dwn| S£-S (3uajeainba [enuue (3A13n23%3 Ja1YD)
lan Bynoe 01/04./04 65—-70 65-70  15-17.5 Nil lump sum sn|d S'z-o e/u ozL-S11) oS¢ 90/zL/770 Ssiuind auer
(BBA pension)
. (dreyd)
Mehmuda Mian 01/04/04 55—60 70—75 5-7.5 plus wns dwn||IN $z—0 SoL-00L oLL-SoL €o/co/€0 JNDIMpPIeH YDIN
Pritchard 15-17.5 lump sum
(8B4 pension) eeep  fesss  feees [
Nicola Williams 01/04/04 70-75 70—75 0-2.5 Nil lump sum 00523 Jo spueq
09 ade je wnsdwn| | (pauyap se) (pauysp se)
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Name and title
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CETV at Real
31/03/07 | increase
in CETV

CETV at
31/03/06

CETV at
31/03/06

Total accrued pension
at age 60 at 31/03/07

and related lump sum as | as updated

previously

Bands of £2,500 stated

_ f’000 f’oo0 f’o00 f’oo0 f’oo0

Nick Hardwick
(Chair)

Jane Furniss
(Chief Executive)

Barry Simpson
(Acting Chief
Executive)

Susan Atkins
(previous Chief
Executive)

John Wadham
(Deputy Chair)

Amerdeep Somal
Gary Garland

John Crawley
Laurence Lustgarten
Len Jackson

Mike Franklin

Naseem Malik
Nicholas Long
Rebecca Marsh
Tom Davies

David Petch
(BBA pension)

Deborah Glass
(BBA pension)

lan Bynoe
(BBA pension)

Mehmuda Mian
Pritchard
(BBA pension)

Nicola Williams

5—7.5 Nil lump sum

35-37.5 plus Not 658 (as at 704 39
15-117.5 lump sum  applicable  04/12/06)
50-52.5 Nil lump sum Not 649 703 46
(as at 03/12/06)  applicable (as at (as at
31/03/06)  03/12/06)
32.5-35 plus 610 668 681 9
97.5-100 lump sum (as at
(as at 30/06/06) 30/06/06)
15=17.5 Nil lump sum 252 242 281 28
12.5-15 Nil lump sum 33 33 147 m
15-17.5 Nil lump sum 210 205 219 10
2.5-5 Nil lump sum 44 44 65 17
37.5—40 Nil lump sum 682 681 706 34
7.5=10 Nil lump sum 124 124 151 18
5-7.5 plus 76 76 92 13
17.5—20 lump sum
12.5-15 Nil lump sum 136 136 153 13
2.5-5 Nil lump sum 53 32 75 40
2.5-5 Nil lump sum 35 36 50 11
5=7.5 Nil lump sum 113 113 134 19
5—7.5 Nil lump sum 110 34 103 15
5-7.5 plus 77 24 79 14
15-17.5 lump sum
17.5—20 Nil lump sum 274 43 266 14
5-7.5 plus 105 22 98 10
20-22.5 lump sum
2.5-5 Nil lump sum 30 30 47 14
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CETVs as at 31 March 2006 which
were disclosed in the 2005/06
Financial Statements have been
restated in order to reflect changes
made to the underlying pension
record in the year to 31 March 2007.

In the case of Commissioners who
have a BBA pension arrangement the
real increase in CETV only reflects
the increase in CETV funded by IPCC
during the year to 31 March 2007 and
therefore does not include the value
of benefits to be transferred from
the Home Office which relate to past
Police Complaints Authority (PCA)
service. The accrued pension and the
real increase in pension and related
lump sum at age 60 do include the
value relating to past PCA service.

Statement of the
Commission’s and the
Accounting Officer’s
responsibilities for the
Statement of Accounts

Under paragraph 17(1) of Schedule

2 to the Police Reform Act 2002, the
IPCC is required to prepare for each
financial year a statement of accounts
in the form and on the basis set out
in the Accounts Direction issued by
the Secretary of State. The accounts
are prepared on an accruals basis and
must give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the IPCC and of its
income and expenditure, recognised
gains and losses, and cash flows for
the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the
Accounting Officer is required to
comply with the requirements of the
FReM, and in particular to:

¢ observe the Accounts Direction
issued by the Secretary of State,
with the consent of the Treasury,
including the relevant accounting
and disclosure requirements, and
apply suitable accounting policies
on a consistent basis;

¢ make judgements and estimates
on a reasonable basis;

¢ state whether applicable
accounting standards as set out in
the FReM have been followed, and
disclose and explain any material
departures in the accounts; and

¢ prepare the accounts on a going-
concern basis.

For the year under review, the
Accounting Officer for the Home
Office had appointed the Chief
Executive, Susan Atkins, as Accounting
Officer for the IPCC. In July 2006,

the Accounting Officer for the

Home Office appointed the Acting
Chief Executive, Barry Simpson, as
Accounting Officer for the IPCC; and
in December 2006 the Home Office
appointed Jane Furniss as Accounting
Officer for the IPCC.

The responsibilities of an Accounting
Officer, including responsibility for the
propriety and regularity of the public
finances for which the Accounting
Officer is answerable, for keeping
proper records and for safeguarding
the IPCC’s assets, are set out in the
Accounting Officers’ Memorandum
issued by the Treasury and published
in Government Accounting.
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Statement on internal
control

Scope of responsibility

As Accounting Officer, | have
responsibility for maintaining a sound
system of internal control that
supports the achievements of the
IPCC’s policies, aims and objectives,
while safeguarding the public funds
and assets under my control. This is in
accord with the responsibilities
assigned to me by the Home Office
set out in the Financial Memorandum
and with those in Government
Accounting.

The IPCC provides information to the
sponsoring department, the Home

Office, via a series of regular meetings.

In particular, | discuss the IPCC's
operational performance, financial
management and risk with the
sponsoring unit, the Policing Powers
and Protection Unit, during bilateral
meetings arranged for that purpose,
normally held bi-monthly.

The purpose of the system of internal
control

The IPCC system of internal control

is designed to manage risktoa
reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives; it can
therefore only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing
process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement
of the IPCC’s policies, aims and
objectives; to evaluate the likelihood
of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised; and to
manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in
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the IPCC for the year ended 31 March
2007 and up to the date of approval of
the Annual Report and Accounts, and
accords with Treasury guidance.

The risk and control framework and
capacity to handle risk

The IPCC risk and control framework
extends throughout all work
undertaken.The internal control
framework includes formal
procedures for receiving management
information, delegation of duties
and accountability, formal line
management structures, and

the segregation of duties where
appropriate. Processes developed and
applied during the year to manage
risk include the following:

® enhancements of the strategic
risk register to show the risk
management processes for the
achievement of business plan and
corporate objectives;

¢ procedures for ensuring that
aspects of risk management are
embedded into directorate plans
and reviewed regularly by senior
management;

¢ formal reporting protocols that
ensure that all formal reports to
the Commission and subsidiary
committees contain a risk and risk
management report;

® procedures for raising risk
exception reports for the attention
of the senior executive team, which
advises me of significant risks that
require management; and

® regular meetings of the
Commissioners at which the
strategic risk register is reviewed
and progress against IPCC strategic
plans are reviewed along with
overall performance.

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2006/07
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The IPCC has engaged the Home
Office Audit and Assurance Unit,
which operates in accordance with
government internal audit standards,
to provide an internal audit function.
Its work is informed by an analysis of
the risks to which the IPCC is exposed,
and annual internal audit plans are
based on this analysis. The annual
internal audit plan for 2006/07 was
approved by the Audit Committee
and me. | received regular reports on
progress against this plan and on
matters arising from it, including any
control weaknesses identified. The
firm Bentley Jennison was appointed
internal auditor from 1 April 2007 by
agreement with the sponsor unit.

The Home Office Audit and Assurance
Unit provides me with a report on

internal audit activity within the IPCC.

Its reports include its independent
opinion of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the IPCC’s system of
internal control, based on the work
undertaken.

I was appointed Accounting Officer
on 4 December 2006. As Accounting
Officer, | have responsibility for
reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. My review
of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control is informed by the
work of the internal auditors and the
IPCC executive managers who have
responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal
control framework, as well as by
comments made by the external
auditors in their management letter
and other reports. My review is also
informed by a review conducted
jointly with my predecessor and by
the work of the Audit Committee,

Resources Committee and
Commissioners during the year.

The processes applied in maintaining
and reviewing the effectiveness of
the system of internal control during
2006/07 included the following:

meetings of the Commissioners
during which the strategic risks
facing the IPCC were reviewed;

meetings of the Audit Committee,
under an independent Chair,

with both Commissioner and
independent members, to receive
reports on risk management and
internal audit functions; and

the work of the Home Office
Audit and Assurance Unit, which
provides me with an independent
opinion of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the IPCC’s system
of internal control.

In the coming year we are introducing
a balanced scorecard and embedding
an operational risk register in order
to strengthen internal control. We are
also intending to address weaknesses
in our time recording system for the
purposes of providing a robust basis
for charging to HMRC and the Border
and Immigration Agency.

I am pleased to note that in their
2006/07 annual assurance report,

the internal auditors have formed

the opinion that IPCC internal control
systems are adequately controlled
overall.| have discussed with the
internal auditors and the Audit
Committee our plans to address those
specificand limited areas where
further improvements are necessary.

Jane Furniss
Accounting Officer
4 July 2007
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The Certificate

and Report of the
Comptroller and
Auditor General to the
Houses of Parliament

| certify that | have audited the
financial statements of the IPCC

for the year ended 31 March 2007
under Schedule 2 paragraph 17(2) of
the Police Reform Act 2002. These
comprise the income and expenditure
account, the balance sheet, the cash
flow statement and statement of
total recognised gains and losses
and the related notes. These financial
statements have been prepared
under the accounting policies set

out within them. | have also audited
the information in the remuneration
report that is described in that report
as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of the
Commission, Chief Executive/
Accounting Officer and auditor

The Commission and Chief Executive
as Accounting Officer are responsible
for preparing the Annual Report,

the remuneration report and the
financial statements in accordance
with the Police Reform Act 2002

and the Treasury directions made
thereunder and for ensuring the
regularity of financial transactions.
These responsibilities are set out in
the statement of the Commission and
Chief Executive’s/Accounting Officer’s
responsibilities.

My responsibility is to audit the
financial statements and the part of
the remuneration report to be audited
in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements, and with
International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland).
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| report to you my opinion as to
whether the financial statements
give a true and fair view and whether
the financial statements and the
part of the remuneration report

to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the
Police Reform Act 2002 and the
Treasury directions made thereunder.
| report to you whether, in my opinion,
certain information given in the
Annual Report, which comprises a
directors’ report,a management
commentary and a remuneration
report, is consistent with the financial
statements. | also report whether in
all material respects the expenditure
and income have been applied to the
purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial transactions conform to
the authorities which govern them.

In addition, | report to you if the

IPCC has not kept proper accounting
records, if | have not received all

the information and explanations |
require for my audit, or if information
specified by HM Treasury regarding
remuneration and other transactions
is not disclosed.

| review whether the statement on
internal control reflects the IPCC’s
compliance with HM Treasury’s
guidance, and | report if it does not.

I am not required to consider whether
this statement covers all risks and
controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the IPCC’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk

and control procedures.

| read the other information
contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it is consistent with
the audited financial statements.

| consider the implications for my
report if | become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2006/07
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inconsistencies with the financial
statements. My responsibilities do not
extend to any other information.

| conducted my audit in accordance
with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. My audit
includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts,
disclosures and regularity of financial
transactions included in the financial
statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report to be audited.

It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements
made by the Commission and
Accounting Officer in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies

are most appropriate to the IPCC’s
circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

I planned and performed my audit
so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which | considered
necessary in order to provide me
with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the
financial statements and the part

of the remuneration report to be
audited are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error, and that in all material
respects the expenditure and income
have been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform

to the authorities which govern
them. In forming my opinion | also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the
financial statements and the part

of the remuneration report to be
audited.

Audit opinion
In my opinion:

the financial statements give a
true and fair view, in accordance
with the Police Reform Act 2002
and directions made thereunder
by the Treasury, of the state of the
IPCC’s affairs as at 31 March 2007
and of its net expenditure for the
year then ended;

the financial statements and

the part of the remuneration
report to be audited have been
properly prepared in accordance
with the Police Reform Act 2002
and the Treasury directions made
thereunder; and

information given within the
Annual Report, which comprises a
directors’ report,a management
commentary and a remuneration
report, is consistent with the
financial statements.

Audit opinion on reqularity

In my opinion, in all material respects
the expenditure and income have
been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

| have no observations to make on
these financial statements.

John Bourn

Comptroller and Auditor General
National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
Victoria

London SWIW gSP

5July 2007
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Income and expenditure account
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Gross income

Expenditure

Net expenditure on ordinary
activities after cost of capital

1e3A 3y} 1o} 2in3ipuadxa }9N

Net expenditure for the year
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses

for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Total recognised gain for the year
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Balance sheet
at 31 March 2007
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Fixed assets
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Current assets
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saljl|iqel] Juarin) Net current assets (liabilities)

Total net assets before provisions
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Total assets less all liabilities
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Total capital and reserves
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Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Operating activities

Financing

Increase in cash in
the period
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Notes to the accounts

Statement of accounting policies

Accounting basis
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Accounting conventions
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Going concern
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1.4 Value Added Tax

Notional costs
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1.6 Grantin aid
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1.7  Fixed assets

1.8  Depreciation
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1.9 Pension costs
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1.10 Operating leases

Grant in aid

Other income
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Fees and charges

03D pue
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s3sod Juawhodwy ¥ Employment costs

Staff costs and Commissioners’ remuneration

Commissioners
and CEO
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4.2 Staff numbers (including Commissioners)

5  Broadly by analogy pensions
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Pension provision

Present value of liabilities
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Increase in provision

S31}1|1qel| JO dn|eA Ju3sald

uoisinoid uoisuaq

Annual Report and Statement of Accounts 2006/07 7

Vv aleld / L€ (BIS /X891 095562010826




9780102945560_Text / Sig: 37 / Plate B

6 Administrative costs

Administrative costs include the following:
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Cost of capital
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Intangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation

Amortisation
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Net book value at 31 March 2007
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Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation

Depreciation

Net book value at
31 March 2007
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10 Debtors

yasew LE je |ejol
Total debtors at 31 March

Cash at bank and in hand
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Balance at 31 March
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Creditors due within one year
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Total at 31 March
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13 Creditors due after one year
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14 Movements on reserves 2005/06 (as restated)
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Closing balance
at 31 March 2006
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Movements on reserves 2006/07
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Closing balance
at 31 March 2007
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15 Reconciliation of net operating cost to net cash inflow/outflow
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Net cash inflow/(outflow) from

saijiAoe Suijesado operating activities
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Capital commitments

Commitments under leases

Total at 31 March
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18 Provisions
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Closing balance
at 31 March 2007
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19 Deferred income
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Total at 31 March

suoisinold gL

goeld / Ly BIS /Ixe 1 0955762010826




9780102945560_Text / Sig: 42 / Plate A

18 L0/900% sjunoddy jo Juawajels pue 1oday jenuuy

Intra-government balances
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Total at 31 March

Creditors
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Total at 31 March

Post-balance sheet events
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Contingent liabilities
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Special payments
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24 Financial instruments
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25 Related party transactions
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26 Financial targets
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Resource outturn

Resources

Resources available to the IPCC

Expenditure

Resources expended by the IPCC

IPCC resource outturn under/(over) spend
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Glossary of Terms

84

Acronyms

ACPO: Association of Chief Police Officers
APA: Association of Police Authorities
BBA: broadly by analogy

CCTV: closed-circuit television

CETV: cash equivalent transfer value
CPS: Crown Prosecution Service

DSI: Deputy Senior Investigator

FReM: Financial Reporting Manual

FRS: Financial Reporting Standard

HMIC: Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of
Constabulary

HMRC: Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs

IND: Immigration and Nationality
Directorate

IPCC: Independent Police Complaints
Commission

MPA: Metropolitan Police Authority
NDPB: non-departmental public body
PCA: Police Complaints Authority

PCSPS: Principal Civil Service Pension
Scheme

PSD: Professional Standards
Department

SIA: Security Industries Authority

SOCA: Serious Organised Crime
Agency

TCC:Telephone Complaints Centre
(IPCQ)

Glossary

Acts

You can find more information about
Acts (between the years 1987 to 2006)
mentioned in this document from the
Office of Public Sector Information at
www.opsi.gov.uk

For more information about the
Mental Health Act 1983, go to
www.dh.gov.uk/PolicyAndGuidance/
HealthAndSocialCareTopics/
MentalHealth/fs/en

Appeal
An application by a complainant for
the IPCC to review a police decision.

Association of Chief Police Officers
(ACPO)

An independent body that works on
behalf of the police service, rather
than its own members, it leads

and manages the development of
the service in England, Wales and
Northern Ireland.

Baton round

The baton gun fires plastic bullets
designed to disable a person rather
than cause death.

Casework

The key function of casework is to
process complaints and appeals, and
to conduct matters in accordance
with best practice principles.
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Used to house anyone who has
been detained, the suite is set up
with CCTV and is usually staffed by
a police custody officer and civilian
detention officers.

Formed to reduce the number of
deaths in all types of custody, the
forum is made up of healthcare and
criminal justice professionals.

The process of setting, monitoring,
inspecting and reviewing the
operation of the police complaints
system, to ensure accessibility

and excellence.

The independent inspection body
for both the NHS and independent
healthcare. It was set up to improve
the quality of healthcare and

public health.

Promotes the continuous
improvement in the quality and safety
of patient care within NHS Wales.

Responsible for collecting the tax
revenue, as well as paying Tax Credits
and Child Benefits to those who are
entitled to them.

An independent judicial officer, the
coroner enquires into deaths reported
to him/her.

An investigation carried out by
IPCC staff.
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Consists of a Chair, a Deputy Chair and
15 Commissioners — each responsible
for specific police forces, for
guardianship work and for individual
cases.

A multi-agency committee
established to help the police

service improve by learning from
investigations and other operations
of the police complaints and conduct
system.

Cases that the IPCC has inherited
from the PCA.

When a complaint is resolved at a
local level such as in a police station
or a basic command unit.

An investigation carried out by the
police under the direction and control
of the IPCC.

A case where death or serious harm
could have resulted.

The representative body to which
every police officer, below the rank of
superintendent, belongs. Each of the
43 police forces in England and Wales
is a branch of the Police Federation.

Specific complaints or incidents that
could damage public confidence in
policing, which the police must refer
to the IPCC.
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Serious Organised Crime Agency
An intelligence-led agency with
law enforcement powers, it is

also responsible for reducing the
harm that is caused to people and
communities by serious organised
crime.

Supervised investigation
Carried out by the police and
supervised by an IPCC Commissioner.

Terms of reference
Parameters within which an
investigation is conducted.

Working days

Working days include Monday to
Friday and bank holidays, but exclude
weekends.
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